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1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND OPERATIONS

Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited (referred as the “Company”
below) was established in the People’s Republic of China (referred
as the “PRC” below) on 16th June, 1993 and it obtained the business
license of a Sino-foreign Joint Stock Company on 27th December,
1995. The H shares of the Company were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15th July, 1993 and its A shares
were listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange on 27th August, 1993.

On 21st October, 2002, the Company signed a strategic investment
agreement (the “Strategic Investment Agreement”) with Anheuser-
Busch Companies, Inc. (“A-B Company”), pursuant to which the
Company is obliged to issue several tranches of mandatory
convertible bonds (“CB”) to A-B Company, amounting to
approximately HK$1,416,195,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,507,990,000). Upon full conversion of the CB, the equity
holding of A-B Company in the Company will increase to
approximately 27%.
HK$1,162,057,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,237,155,000)
of the CB were issued and the related proceeds were received from
A-B Company, out of which approximately HK$280,800,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB297,999,000) of the CB had been
converted into 60,000,000 new H-shares as at 31st December, 2003.

During the vyear, approximately

The remaining balance of the CB of approximately HK$254,138,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB270,835,000) was received on
31st March, 2004. More details are set out in Note 22 and Note 23.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the production and distribution

of beer products.

Details of subsidiaries of the Company are detailed in Note 4.
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2. CHANGE OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

The Group has adopted the revised “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises-Event Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date”
from 1st July, 2003 onwards. Prior to the adoption of the revised
standard, proposed dividend was recognised as a liability in the
balance sheet even it was declared after the balance sheet date.
After 1st July, 2003, dividend payable to shareholders is recognised
in the period when the distribution plan is approved by the
shareholders’ meeting. The effect of the revised Accounting Standards

for Business Enterprises on the accounts of 2002 are as follows:

£ NG|

Group Company

F KR 5 B A E Increase in the unappropriated 110,000,000 110,000,000
profit brought forward

FRA 5 B A EE Increase in the unappropriated 220,000,000 220,000,000
profit carried forward

JRE U5 B )t Decrease in dividends receivable — 180,040,000

& 151 & R Decrease in dividends payable 299,592,776 220,000,000

REAI IR & 1R AN Increase in long term equity investments — 180,040,000
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and “the Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises” and related regulations (collectively referred
as “PRC GAAP”), promulgated by the Central Government of the
PRC.

(b) Financial year

The financial year runs from 1st January to 31st December of each

calendar year.
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(c) Basis of recording and measurement bases

The books and records are maintained on an accrual basis. Apart
from those assets which were recorded at the revalued amount
approved by the State-owned Assets Administration Bureau upon
the reorganization of the Company into a Joint Stock Company, all
assets are stated at costs. If assets impairment is identified, provision

for impairment is recognised in the income statement.

(d) Reporting currency and foreign currency translation

The Company maintains its books and records in Renminbi (RMB).

The amounts of the financial statements are expressed in RMB.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates stipulated by the People’s Bank of China prevailing
at the transaction date. As of balance sheet date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
RMB at the exchange rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Except for the capitalised
exchange gains or losses arising from specific loan for the purchases
of assets, all exchange gains or losses are dealt with in the profit

and loss account.

All assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies on the
balance sheets are translated at the exchange rates stipulated by
the People’s Bank of China prevailing at the balance sheet date;
shareholders’ equity (except unappropriated profits) are translated
at exchange rates stipulated by the People’s Bank of China prevailing
at the transaction date; unappropriated profits are recorded based
on the amount stated on the profit and loss account after translation
adjustments; profit and loss account items are translated at the
average applicable rates during the year. Exchange differences arising
from such translations are dealt with in the cumulative translation
adjustment account on the translated balance sheet. All items in
cash flow statements are translated at the exchange rates prevailing

at the balance sheet date.
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(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash, which is shown in the cash flow statements, represents cash
on hand and deposits with banks and other financial institutions

which are repayable on demand.

Cash equivalents represent short-term, highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash with
original maturities of three months or less that are subject to an

insignificant risk of change in value.

Fixed deposits with maturity over three months and the restricted
bank deposits are not regarded as cash and cash equivalents in the

cash flow statements.

(f) Short-term investments

Short-term investments mainly represent entrusted loans. Entrusted
loans are loans entrusted to financial institutions for lending to
other parties, the terms of all entrusted loans are current. When the
accrued interest income are due but not being received, further
accruals will cease to be made and interest income previously

accrued is reversed.

(g) Receivables and provision for bad debts

Receivables represent accounts receivable and other receivables.
The Group adopts the “allowance method” in accounting for
potential bad debts. The net receivables are presented in the financial
statements based on the actual receivable balance net of the
provision balance. The accounts receivable balances include

balances due from both related parties and non-related parties.
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The Group determines the amount of bad debt losses on ending
receivable balances as at year end (including balances due from
related parties). Management determines the needs of such provision
based on aging analysis, past experience and financial and operating
situations of the customers. Excluding the receivable balances which
management considers with no collectibility problem, general bad
debt provision of 50% and 100% are made for receivable balances

aged within 1 to 2 years and over 2 years, respectively.

When there is any evidence indicating that the accounts receivable
balances become uncollectible, for instance, when the debtors suffer
from liquidation, bankruptcy, having net liabilities or inadequate
cash flow, bad debts are recognised and the balances are written
off in that period against the corresponding provision for bad debts

that has previously been made for these balances.

(h) Inventories

Inventories, mainly including raw materials, work-in-progress,
packaging materials, auxiliary materials, low value consumables
and finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

The inventory acquired is recorded at actual cost. The costs of raw
materials and finished goods are calculated on weighted average
basis, while the low-value consumables and certain packaging
materials are amortised into expenses over their estimated useful
lives of 1-5 years using straight-line method. The cost of work-in-
process and finished goods include the costs of raw materials, direct
labour and indirect production costs allocated based on appropriate
percentages of total indirect production costs under normal
production capacity. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion, the estimated expenses and related taxes necessary to

make the sales.
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When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as a cost in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

The Group and the Company adopts the perpetual inventory system.

(i) Long-term investments

Long-term investments

Long-term investments include investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associated companies and other investments which
are expected to be held for a period over one year and bonds or

other debt investments which are not readily realised.

(i) Subsidiary refers to company which the Company holds, directly
or indirectly, more than 50% of its voting share capital or has
control over its financial and operating policies. Joint Venture refers
to company which is jointly controlled by the Company and other
investors, with neither of them having a dominant control. Associated
company refers to company which the Company holds, directly or
indirectly, between 20% to 50% exclusive, of its voting share capital

or has substantial influence over its financial and operating policies.

(ii) The carrying amount of long term equity investment is the actual
cost of the investment or the book value of the non-monetary assets
given up together with the related tax expenses. The Company has
adopted the equity method to account for its long term equity
investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies.
For other investments which the Company intends to hold for more

than one year, they are accounted for using the cost method.
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(iii)For the long term equity investment accounted for using equity
method before 17th March, 2003, the difference between the initial
investment cost and the share of equity in the investee is amortised
over 10 years using the straight line method. For investments made
after 17th March, 2003, the initial investment cost which is less
than the share of equity in the investee is recognised as share
premium. If the initial investment cost is greater than the share of
equity in the investee company, the difference is amortised over 10

years using the straight line method.

(iv) When the investment is accounted for using the equity method,
investment income (loss) recognised by the Group is the share of
the current year’s profit (loss) in the investee. Dividends declared
by the investee company are offset against the long term equity
investment costs. When the investment is accounted for using the
cost method, investment income is recognised by the Group upon

the declaration of dividends by the investee company.

Provision for impairment of long-term investments

Provision for impairment of long-term investments is made when
the recoverable amount of the investments is lower than their
carrying amounts due to continuous decrease in their market price
or deterioration of the operating results of these companies and
these conditions are not expected to recover in the foreseeable
future. Provision for diminution in value of long-term investments
is made based on the differences between the recoverable amounts

and the carrying amounts of the long-term investments.

(j) Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets includes buildings (including land use rights), plant
and machinery, motor vehicles and other equipment, utensils and
tools related to production and management with useful lives over

1 year.
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Fixed assets purchased or constructed are recorded at cost. The
revalued amount is determined based on the asset valuation
undertaken by the Company upon its reorganisation into a joint
stock company subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
company and confirmation from the state-owned Assets
Administration Bureau of the PRC. Normal maintenance costs, repairs
and overhaul expenditures incurred after the fixed assets have been
put into operation are charged to the profit and loss account in the
period in which they are incurred. Costs incurred for significant
improvement and renewals, which have resulted in an increase in
future economic benefits, are capitalised as additional costs of the

fixed asset.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to write off the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. For those assets which have
been provided for impairment, depreciation rate and the depreciation
amount are re-determined based on the restated net book values.
The estimated useful lives, residual value rate and annual

depreciation rate of fixed assets are as follows:

BRI ERER BRI RRER EREX
Estimated Estimated Annual
Useful Lives residual value depreciation rate

EEREEY Land and buildings
— KR — at cost 20-40 years 3% 2.4% — 4.9%
— TiE R — Land use rights 50 years 0% 2%
WERE Plant and machinery 5-14 years 3% 6.9% — 19.4%
BRRE Motor vehicles 5-12 years 3% 8.1% — 19.4%
H iR Other equipment 5-10 years 3% 9.7% — 19.4%
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At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews each of the fixed
asset items. Provision for impairment losses are made for the excess
of the carrying amount of an asset over its recoverable amount,
which is caused by continuous decline in market value, out-dated
technology, damage, or idle usage, etc. When economic benefits
can no longer be derived from the fixed assets, these assets are
fully provided for impairment loss individually and the corresponding

charges are recognised in the profit and loss account of the year.
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(k) Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents buildings under construction and
machinery and equipment under installation and testing and is stated
at cost incurred. The costs include cost of construction, other direct
costs, machinery and equipments cost and its installment expenses,
and the eligible capitalised borrowing costs incurred from specific
loans during the period of construction, installation and testing.
Construction-in-progress is transferred to fixed asset when it is ready
for its intended use. No depreciation is provided for construction-

in-progress.

At each balance sheet date, the Group conducts a full-scale review
of its construction-in-progress. Provision for impairment losses is
made and charged to the profit and loss account when the
recoverable amount is lower than its carrying amount, when
constructions is suspended and expected not to resume in coming
3 vyears, the specification and technology are obsolete and the
economic benefits of which are uncertain, or when other evidences

for impairment losses.

(I) Borrowing costs

Borrowing is recognised based on the actual amount received. Any
related charges and expenses are recognized in the year when they

incur.

The interest expenses, auxiliary expenses and exchange differences
arising from translation of specific loans specially for the construction
of fixed assets are capitalised when expenditures for the specified
construction are incurred; the borrowing costs have incurred; and
activities which are necessary to bring the asset to be ready for its
intended use are undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
upon the completion of activities that are necessary for the asset to
be ready for its intended use. The subsequent expenses are

recognised as current year profit and loss.
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The interest expenses arising from specific loans are capitalised
based on the weighted average of capital expenditures and the
weighted average rate of these specific loans, subject to a cap of

the actual interest expenses incurred.

Other borrowing costs arising from loans are charged as finance

costs of the year.

(m)Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets represent land use rights, trademark, computer
software and technology know-how. The net carrying amount is

stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.

The costs of land use rights purchased or obtained by way of
payments of land use right fees are stated at the respective costs of
purchase and recognised as intangible assets until the
commencement of construction of the related projects. The costs of
land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. From 1st January, 2001 onwards, the carrying
values of land use rights are transferred to construction-in-progress

when the land involved is developed for self-use projects.

All research and development expenses for internally generated
intangible assets are charged to the profit and loss account as
expenses when incurred. The Group’s technology know-how was
injected by a minority shareholder of a subsidiary during the
reorganisation of that subsidiary. It was recorded at a value agreed
among all the shareholders of that subsidiary and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over an expected period of inflow of economic

benefits of 10 years.
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Trademarks mainly represent the “TSINGTAO BEER” trademark
injected by the founding shareholder into the Company on 16th
June, 1993 as capital injection. The recorded value of the trademark
was determined based on a valuation amount approved by the State-
Owned Assets Administration Bureau of the PRC. Amortisation of
the trademark is provided for on a straight-line basis to write off the
revalued amount of the trademark over its estimated useful lives of

40 years.

Other trademarks were acquired during acquisitions of certain
subsidiaries and are amortised over their estimated useful lives

ranging from 5-10 years.

The Group regularly reviews the estimated future economic benefits
of each intangible asset item. When there is evidence indicating
that the value of the intangible asset has been impaired, provision
for impairment losses are made for the excess of carrying amount

over its recoverable amount.

(n) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses represent advertising expenses, building
usage right, greenery expenses and expenditures on improvement
projects incurred but with an amortisation period of over one year
(not within one year). They are amortised evenly over the expected
beneficial period using the straight line method and they are

presented at costs incurred less accumulated amortisation.

Expenses incurred during the period of plant construction and
planning are first aggregated and charged as expenses in the month

of commencement of production.
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(o) THBRARAES

AEBNBRRFEERTUREBRARN 2
*’ﬁﬁEWW% TERAR  FRER

ESRTERAREAESEEAEN
%@*%ﬁ1%“f%%ﬁ'ﬁf%%ﬁ
BRRAREREN RN SREHE X

REFERNEERIEE ZA8H®RA
RIEFRAATEEREN  SEFAN

EFERABRNE  BRREROEES
B BN RESFEHEEEERRK
DHENZE BEXHTNRESROK
BOEREARTERRE -

(p) BEtEE

ERBENKETAMBEEE HAELL
BARER ARZEGTHNETRITEZE
mREENMEARLY  BYEREEMT] F;
=R BRAEAE -
(@ MARRWEZ

(i) HEER

EERERMAERLNEIZRABRIEBMNE
BGEEER U THUZEREREES
BAES  BRXSEBOCENREAR
AREE - HBRK AT A GE ST a7t
E%ﬁ%°

HEMBEERBER TR HKLA -

(o) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are recognised as liabilities at issue price upon
its issuance and before their conversion into shares. The difference
between the issue price and the face value is recognised as premium
or discount, which is to be amortised on a straight line method
over the term of the bond. The amortisation is charged together
with the bond interest based on the principle of accounting for
borrowing costs. When the bonds are converted into shares, they
are converted at their carrying amounts. The difference between the
carrying amount of the convertible bonds and the face value of the
shares so converted, net of any related expenses paid, is recognised

as share premium.

(p) Contingent liabilities

An obligation arising from a past event is recognised as a liability
when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the

amount of obligation can be measured reliably.

(q) Revenue recognition

(i) Sales of good

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
a transaction will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have
been transferred to the customer and when the Group does not

have the rights to manage and control the goods.

Sales discounts are net off against revenue in the current period.
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(i) FIE KA

MEMARERRZAERNFHRER
HERLAIMERN RS RAERE -

) FBERNEFRES %

ARERBHRRES A RERAIITOT
FIAE  ABETNEGAR AR
FEWXER - YZERBAANBEESR
RERBEEE -

AGRBEXRAEHERNETREREN
BMEESE EERRREFERER
FAUEZEAE FHEZESREARK
EREEHBIEERRURA BRARER
FOREITRAMELENEZR - KHEEEZE
BRATERNREIHERRTNMERE
ESHETHE -

FREZEREOHERAAMERENNE
MBS A AERE - HEERRLER
HIER T LAMER -

(5) EHEFHRRNERT A

AHEFBREETRARMASHEE
HFRA) - ZREPEAR LB B 5
e F (1995) 1158 KRN ENE A pr a5t
KOETRE)RERRERS -

(i) Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits and entrusted loans is recognised
on a time proportion basis on the amounts of deposit or loans and

the prevailing interest rates.

(r) Taxation

The Group provides for enterprise income tax on the basis of its
profit before tax for financial reporting purposes, adjusted for income
and expenses items which are not assessable or deductible as well

as all the available tax benefits, using the applicable tax rates.

The accounting treatment adopted by the Group for its enterprise
income tax is based on the tax effects on accounting, using the
liability method. Deferred taxation is provided for using the liability
method. Timing differences are differences in the timing of
recognition of income, expenses and profit and loss as a result of
the tax regulations and accounting system. The effects of timing
differences on the cumulative amount of income tax as at year end

are adjusted based on the current tax rate.

Deferred tax asset is not recognised unless the related benefits are

expected to crystallise in the foreseeable future.

(s) Basis of preparation of consolidated accounts

The consolidated accounts include the Company and subsidiaries,
and are prepared based on the requirements of Caikuai [1995] No.
11 “the Articles on issuance of consolidated accounts” and related

regulations promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC.
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KREFRANEREHEZEE AR
AlF A S AR E R A A ~ XA - B
TLAG O RXEREHE L BERLL
Bff c ARAMFRARAZEMEEAER
BE - XHRARERNBCEAHET R
RmEETUEE - MASHEENTA
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BOERIERREAESHBRTES
SR
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EHBET— ¥ BAKEEHZRHA
BFREYERAR  BAATRTHEH
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(v #1E

AARREBRENEEHEIRMT

The turnover, cost of sales and profit and loss account of the
subsidiaries during the year are included in the consolidated profit
and loss account from the effective date of acquisition and up to
the effective date of disposal when the control over the subsidiaries
is ceased. Significant inter-group balances, transactions and
unrealised profits are eliminated on consolidation. Minority interests
represent the interests shared by third party shareholders over the

operating results and net assets of subsidiaries.

Significant differences arising from various accounting policies
adopted by the Company and the subsidiaries that have material
impact to the Group’s accounts are adjusted in accordance to

Company’s accounting policies.

(t) Taxation

The major types of taxation borne by the Company and the Group

are:

FBLER

Basis of calculation

BE B®
Tax Tax rate
PECRAEHR 15-33%
PRC Enterprise Income Tax 15-33%
BEH 17%
Value-added tax (“VAT") 17%

HE M N

Consumption tax —

BRL SR

Assessable income

REMBHERNI7%MARE RAFENNERRRNRE

Net amount of 17% of sales amount, deducted against input VAT

B BEUHEBSH
AR#3,0007T,/ M8 A £ AR¥2507T,/ 1
AR¥3,0007T,/ M8 LA T ANE#2207T /1
Price Unit consumption tax

Above RMB3,000 per ton
Below RMB3,000 per ton

RMB250 per ton
RMB220 per ton
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An analysis of the taxation charges of the year is as follows:

£8 N
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
AR AR AR AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
FREARMAER PRC Enterprise
(i) Income Tax (i) 128,971,452 105,705,784 45,469,941 44,014,249
BERFEH (i) Hong Kong profits tax (ii) 1,514,329 915,871 — =
BN REE Write-off of deferred tax 5,101,358 3,294,657 5,101,358 3,294,657
A (iv) assets (iv)
& &t Total 135,587,139 109,916,312 50,571,299 47,308,906

(i) PEILFFEH

FECEASHROREAFENEERE
FRATNABRENGFE  MEAUESR
AR HEBEEEEN -

BERZBREERE-NAAODFOA+A
ABEHN—H#X BAREAKRIAER
EHMOEEMERERRFAZH - AR
AR AT TS EE R15%N R 2B
BH BEERTEA ARAR-ANL
FZA_T-REESFEMURBHNE
W EREREERGESEERTTE
e

BEWE(ZK)BRAR ([=KA7A]])
BEEEH M) BRAE (HMAR]) &
RNEESRBHABERAR (DRAB]) %
BRABIIERECEL I ZRERME AR
FEEBE BEEENFERTRE=
BYHBTEBAER - AXFERAABE
CEENEER=KARENEERNE
B -BE_ZTZ=F+_A=+—8 " #
N B i KRR

(i) PRC Enterprise Income Tax

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) is provided on the estimated
assessable income for the period calculated in accordance with the
relevant regulations of the PRC after considering all available tax

benefits and allowances.

In accordance with an approval document dated 18th April, 1994
issued by the State Administration of Taxation, net profit earned by
the Company is subject to profits tax at 15% effective from the date
of establishment of the Company. This rate will remain effective
until and unless the enterprise income tax law and regulations
change otherwise. The Company received a confirmation from the
Qingdao Ministry of Finance on 23rd March, 1997 stating that this
preferential tax treatment would not be terminated until further

notice.

Tsingtao Brewery (Sanshui) Company Limited (“Sanshui Company”),
Tsingtao Brewery (Chenzhou) Company Limited (“Chenzhou
Company”) and Shenzhen Tsingtao Beer Asahi Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Company”) are approved as enterprises with foreign
investment and therefore, they are exempt from EIT for two years
starting from the first year of profitable operations after offsetting
prior year tax losses, followed by a 50% reduction for the next
three years. It has been the third and forth year of profitable
operations for Shenzhen Company and Sanshui Company
respectively, for the year ended 31st December, 2003. No profit for

Chenzhou Company was noted as of year ended.
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AT EEREHEEARRA (DRHE])
FEXRAENNFEBRE  hEEENF
EEFAEFRERMEBFARMER -
AEERAHEBBUNFEBREFE=
ERERFE -

EEREKE)BERATARESEE (B
FI) ERARRE D BIRKEREFRER R
RS - BAEBBRBROIA15%: E
LEMREH -

AEBANEMNPEKYLREENZERF
DAM AT P REIR33% T EEEME
M o

(i) ZEBFIFH

BREMNERIREANFE G ERBOLEA

B175% (T —F  16%) 2B R{EHTE
IR e
(iii)iE 7 % 7

EZRINABOETEEMZ B 8 KR
TRERLT  AEESABEHR-ZET
MEZE=TT )\ F N TE KRR AT
SENBHEBERARKER FERETE
ENZEREEMELANECHTEENA
F#¥637,958,000C (ZET-_F+-A=
+—H: AR¥591,160,0007) RHAR
#77,999,000 (ZEZE_F+_A=1—
B : AR#71,822,0007T) {EH R °

Shenzhen Tsingtao Brewery Sales Company Limited (“Shenzhen Sales
Company”) is exempted from EIT for the first year starting from the
first year of profitable operations after offsetting prior year tax losses,
followed by a 50% reduction for the next two years. Current year
was the third year of profitable operations after offsetting all the

prior year tax losses of Shenzhen Sales Company.

Tsingtao Brewery (Zhuhai) Company Limited and Tsingtao Brewery
(Xiamen) Company Limited are established and operating in the
Zhuhai and Xiamen Special Economic Zones, respectively,

accordingly, they are subject to EIT at a rate of 15%.

Other subsidiaries of the Group which are established and operated
in the PRC are subject to EIT at a rate of 33% based on their

respective assessable income for the period.

(i) Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%
(2002: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit for the period.

(iii)Deferred taxation

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets associated with
tax losses available to be carried forward, which will expire in the
period of 2004-2008, in the amount of approximately
RMB637,958,000 (2002: RMB591,160,000), as well as deferred tax
assets arising from provision for realization and impairment losses
of receivable balances, inventories and fixed assets amounting to
approximately RMB77,999,000 (2002: RMB71,822,000), due to the
fact that there is no certainty of realization through future taxable

profits.
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(iv) 1 JE % 7% B &

BRBATHERSE  CES-ARFEE
FNERSERAXL  THBBHEKRA2%
H o RIREME - AKERBE BN R
BERPEARMRFEEEMR AR FE
RABERREE - RNAFE TEER
RERABRLEHTEERVERATRBRE
RYRETEERAURAFEZ N -

(v) BEH

BE(PEARAMBEREERETH
By AEEREREEBRANT7%HEE
MEYMHRIBRER - BERMHRFK
mEMBNMEREER TARENHE
EMHNHEBERER - B AEERR
JEEIEEREER 7%M3% - 2 BIFHE 4
EERVNMHEBEM A -

i) HEH

BREBRZRHEBEBSESHEREHHE
B (EEEYREEYAE) EARY3,000
LR - BEACEERBAEMARE250
7T o EAER 2 $HE - DIREBMARK220
TLRHMHBEER -

(iv) Write-off of deferred tax assets

According to existing EIT regulations, advertising expenses are
deductible for EIT assessment purpose at a maximum amount of 2%
of the turnover of a company in one fiscal year. Any undeductible
portion can be carried forward indefinitely for deduction claims in
future years. Accordingly, the Group recognised deferred tax assets
arising from the portion of the expenses not yet allowed for
deductions in prior years. In 2003, management considered that
the related deferred tax assets would not be likely to realise in the
foreseeable future and it was reversed based on the accounting

principle of prudence.

(v) Value-added tax (“VAT”)

According to “The people’s Republic of China Value-added Tax
Temporary Regulations”, the Group is subject to output VAT which
is calculated at 17% of the sales amount of tangible goods. The
Group also pays input VAT on its purchases of raw materials and
auxiliary materials, which is deducted against the output VAT in
arriving at the net VAT amount payable to the PRC Government. In
addition, the Group accrues and pays for city construction tax and
educational surcharge based on 7% and 3% of net VAT amount

payable, respectively.

(vi) Consumption tax

For beer products with an ex-factory price (including packaging
materials and related deposits) over RMB3,000 per ton, the
consumption tax is RMB250 per ton. For all the other beer products,

the consumption tax is levied at RMB220 per ton.
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4. ERFLAARBELTRER 4. INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED

COMPANIES

@ R-TE=FFT_A=1+—H  ARH
MEBERFATEHMT

(@) As at 3Tst December, 2003, particulars of the principal

subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

BRFOAEH BRIRETREE M HEMER NG Vg
FE2R LAl (%)
Equity interest held

by the Company (%)

TEER

Place of establishment
and principal operation

Name of subsidiaries Registered capital Principal activities

EERE BEES
Directly Indirectly
held held

AmEEREERREBRAA FERY A K% 200,000,000 95% —  BRAF
(rEm&Al)

Tsingtao Brewery Huanan Shenzhen, the PRC RMB200,000,000 95% — Investment holding
Holding Company Limited
(“Huanan Holding Company”)

EEWE (KB FRAR PEKE AR #60,000,000 — 72.83% NEELERHE
(IRBRAI)

Tsingtao Brewery (Zhuhai) Zhuhai, the PRC RMB60,000,000 — 72.83%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Zhuhai Company”) of beer

=KAH] PE =K AR 41,335,505 —  7125% BARELEERHEE

Sanshui Company Sanshui, the PRC RMB41,335,505 — 71.25%  Manufacturing and

domestic trading
of beer

M 2 7 o B M AR 70,000,000 —  84.36% NEELERHE

Chenzhou Company Chenzhou, the PRC RMB70,000,000 — 84.36%  Manufacturing and

domestic trading
of beer

FEWE(RR)ARAH TEER AR 5,000,000 —  9025% BARELERHEE
([ER2F])

Tsingtao Brewery (Huangshi) Huangshi, the PRC RMBS5,000,000 — 90.25%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Huangshi Company”) of beer

BEWE (5 ARAA BB e AR 5,000,000 —  9025% BARELEERHEE

Tsingtao Brewery (Yingcheng) Yingcheng, the PRC RMB5,000,000 — 90.25%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

RE A BB R %7130,000,000 51% — BELER#HE

Shenzhen Company Shenzhen, the PRC US$30,000,000 51% —  Manufacturing and

trading of beer
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BRYAREH

Name of subsidiaries

BRIREREE N

Place of establishment
and principal operation

d2mEX

Registered capital

NG VN
FE 2R E B (%)
Equity interest held

by the Company (%)

FEEK

Principal activities

RITEEREHEBERRA

Shenzhen Sales Company

BERBERERBRAF
Tsingtao Brewery Huadong
Holding Company Limited

EERBZERLBHEBRAF

(T#RL&l)

Tsingtao Brewery Huadong
Shanghai Sales Company
Limited (“Huadong Shanghai”)

BERBERBRAHERRAA
Tsingtao Brewery Huadong
Nanjing Sales Company

Limited

FERELBERAR

(TLBRa])

Tsingtao Brewery (Shanghai)
Company Limited

FREME (HH) ERAA

(TEMAR])

Tsingtao Brewery (Wuhu)
Company Limited

EERE(FHEL)FRAF
Tsingtao Brewery (Maanshan)
Company Limited

BERELBNIBRAA
Tsingtao Brewery Shanghai
Songjiang Company Limited

FELR Y
Shenzhen, the PRC

hE LR
Shanghai, the PRC

TE LR

Shanghai, the PRC

FEER
Nanjing, the PRC

hE LR

Shanghai, the PRC

B &

Wuhu, the PRC

I:P /% %\2 u—l
Maanshan, the PRC

hE L
Shanghai, the PRC

AR #20,000,000
RMB20,000,000

AR %100,000,000
RMB100,000,000

AR 3,000,000

RMB3,000,000

AR ¥1,000,000
RMB1,000,000

AR %50,000,000

RMB50,000,000

AR 20,000,000

RMB20,000,000

AR¥5,000,000
RMB5,000,000

% 71.36,640,000
US$36,640,000

EERE BEES
Directly Indirectly
held held
95% —
95% —
95% —
95% —
— 94.05%
(b))

— 94.05%
(b)ii)

— 93.88%
— 93.88%
— 90.25%
— 90.25%
— 85.50%
— 85.50%
— 91.25%
— 91.25%
75% =
75% =

NEBE S
Domestic trading
of beer

ERRAE

Investment holding

BRREE 5

Domestic trading
of beer

AEEE 5
Domestic trading
of beer

BREBLERKEE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

BREBLERKEE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

ARRELERKEE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

BARELERKEE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer
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BRYAREH

Name of subsidiaries

BRIREREE N

Place of establishment

and principal operation

d2mEX

Registered capital

NG VN
FE 2R E B (%)
Equity interest held
by the Company (%)

FEEK

Principal activities

EERE BEES
Directly Indirectly
held held

EERE (B ARAF FEEL AR %60,606,060 99% — BERAREEERBE
(It 2a=)

Tsingtao Brewery (Shouguang)  Shouguang, the PRC RMB60,606,060 99% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Shouguang Company”) of beer

EEBE (49 ERAF FEAY AR 5,000,000 70% — BEREELERHE
(s Rw)

Tsingtao Brewery (Weifang) Weifang, the PRC RMB5,000,000 70% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Weifang Company”) of beer

EERE(RE)ARAA TERE AR #5,000,000 95% — BERRELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Angiu) Angiu, the PRC RMB5,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

EEWEE=BRAH FEYE A& #10,000,000 95% — BERRELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery No. 3 Pingdu, the PRC RMB10,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

FEEE (RN FRAF oh B 5 AR #39,336,899 66% — BERARELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Xuzhou) Peixian, the PRC RMB39,336,899 66% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Xuzhou Company”) of beer

ESWAGNZH) ARAR  REZH AR 5,000,000 90% — BERRELERHE
(TZHas)

Tsingtao Brewery Pengcheng, the PRC RMB5,000,000 90% —  Manufacturing and
(Xuzhou Pengcheng) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer

BERE (B) FRA A FEEER AR #45,000,000 85% — BERRELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Xuecheng) Xuecheng, the PRC RMB45,000,000 85% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

FEEE (BM) FRAF P BB AR 15,000,000 95% — BEREELERHE
(TEMAE])

Tsingtao Brewery (Tengzhou) Tengzhou, the PRC RMB15,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and

Company Limited
(“Tengzhou Company”)

domestic trading
of beer
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BRYAREH

Name of subsidiaries

BRIREREE N

Place of establishment

and principal operation

d2mEX

Registered capital

NG VN
FE 2R E B (%)
Equity interest held
by the Company (%)

FEEK

Principal activities

BERE(aRH) RFARAA
Tsingtao Brewery (Taierzhuang)
Malt Company Limited

TR=RDACEERLA

(MER=]RRA])

Beijing Three Ring Asia Pacific
Beer Company Limited

(“Beijing Three
Ring Company”)

TREESEREFRAA

(EREERA])

Beijing Five Star Tsingtao

Brewery Company

Limited (“Beijing Five

Star Company”)

FREME (BN BRAA

(MBM2a])

Tsingtao Brewery (Fuzhou)

Company Limited

(“Fuzhou Company”)

EEWE (B FRAR

(TBHRa])

Tsingtao Brewery (Langfang)

Company Limited

(“Langfang Company”)

EEREAZERE
(M%)

Tsingtao Brewery Xian Company
Limited (“Xian Company”)

(F/N

a]

EEREEEARREAT

Tsingtao Brewery Weinan

Company Limited

hE e R
Taierzhuang, the PRC

PRI R

Beijing, the PRC

PRI R

Beijing, the PRC

R

Fuzhou, the PRC

)i

Langfang, the PRC

TR

Xian, the PRC

REE
Weinan, the PRC

AR¥5,000,000
RMB5,000,000

% 71.28,900,000

US$28,900,000

AR %862,000,000

RMB862,000,000

%7126,828,100

US$26,828,100

AR 10,000,000

RMB10,000,000

AR%222.200,000

RMB222,200,000

AR 50,000,000
RMB50,000,000

EERE BEES
Directly Indirectly
held held

— 86.20%

— 86.20%
54%(d) —
54%(d) =
37.64% 25%
37.64% 25%
75%(b)(i) 25%(b)(i)
75% (b)(i) 25%(b)(i)
95% =
95% —
76.10% =
76.10% =

28% 54.79%
28% 54.79%

ARESRERES

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of malt

BREBELERE S

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

BREBLERKEE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

BREBELERE S

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

BREBLERKEE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

BREBLERKEE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

BARELERKEE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer
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BRYAREH

Name of subsidiaries

BRIREREE N

Place of establishment

and principal operation

d2mEX

Registered capital

NG VN
FE 2R E B (%)
Equity interest held
by the Company (%)

FEEK

Principal activities

EERE BEES
Directly Indirectly
held held

EERE &) FRAAF FEZL A% 50,000,000 60% — BERRELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Anshan) Anshan, the PRC RMB50,000,000 60% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

EEBE (REM) FRAF FEER A& #20,000,000 95% — BERARELERHE
(RSB Ra])

Tsingtao Brewery (Xingkaihu) Jixi, the PRC RMB20,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Xingkaihu Company”) of beer

ESWAE(EL)FRAR FEEL A& #20,000,000 95% — BERRELERHEE

Tsingtao Brewery (Mishan) Mishan, the PRC RMB20,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

FERE(RAE) FRAA PEREEA AR %22,000,000 95% — BERRELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Haerbin) Haerbin, the PRC RMB22,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

BERE (ER) RO FEER AR #37,500,000 80% — BERRELERHE
(&%)

Tsingtao Brewery (Penglai) Penglai, the PRC RMB37,500,000 80% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Penglai Company”) of beer

EERE (RK) FRA ] RERM A& #20,000,000 70% — BERRELERHE
(TR AT])

Tsingtao Brewery (Rongcheng) ~ Rongcheng, the PRC RMB20,000,000 70% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Rongcheng Company”) of beer

FEERESEELOERAR HFHES AR%11,000,000  97.73% — EHN®ERS
(I&EELORAF]) (biii)

Tsingtao Brewery Import/Export ~ Qingdao, the PRC RMB11,000,000  97.73% —  Import/Export
Company Limited (b)(iii) trading of beer
(“Group Import/Export
Company”)

BERESRERERRAF TEES AR #5,000,000 95% — EBERREZS

Tsingtao Brewery Sales Qingdao, the PRC RMB5,000,000 95% —  Domestic trading

Company Limited

of beer
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BRYAREH

Name of subsidiaries

BRIREREE N

Place of establishment

and principal operation

d2mEX

Registered capital

NG VN
FE 2R E B (%)
Equity interest held
by the Company (%)

FEEK

Principal activities

EERE BEES
Directly Indirectly
held held

BEEWE(ER)ERAA FEES AR#34,610,000  93.79% — BERARELERHE
(TERRAAF])

Tsingtao Brewery No. 5 Qingdao, the PRC RMB34,610,000  93.79% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“No. 5 Company”) of beer

EERBERERRAF TEES AR #1,320,000 100% — BR%EES

Tsingtao Brewery Kai Fa Qingdao, the PRC RMB1,320,000 100% —  Domestic trading
Company Limited of beer

EERE(FR)ARAA FEYR AR 5,000,000 90% — BERRELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Pingyuan) Pingyuan, the PRC RMB5,000,000 90% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

EERE (AR ARAAF FEAR A& #10,000,000 95% — BERRELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Rizhao) Rizhao, the PRC RMB10,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

EEBECTE) ERAF L2 AR %10,000,000 90% — BEREELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Heze) Heze, the PRC RMB10,000,000 90% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

EERE(ZEE)ERAA TEER AR #7,000,000 95% — BERRELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Chongging) ~ Chongging, the PRC RMB?7,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

EERE(BM) ERAF FEAM A& #10,000,000 95% — BEREELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery (Taizhou) Taizhou, the PRC RMB10,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

EERE(FR)ESERAA  BA 7 #500,000 100% — EBWEERS
([BERA])

Tsingtao Brewery (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% —  Trading of Tsingtao

Trading Company Limited
(“Hong Kong Company”)

beer in Hong Kong
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BRFOAER BRIREREE N HZMER NG VN
FE 2R E B (%)
Equity interest held

by the Company (%)

FEEK

Place of establishment
and principal operation

Name of subsidiaries Registered capital Principal activities

EERE BEES
Directly Indirectly
held held

EERE(EF) FRAA REET AR 29,410,000 —  5023% EAREBEERES

Tsingtao Brewery (Hanzhong) Hanzhong, the PRC RMB29,410,000 — 50.23%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

BEEWE M) 2FARAR  REKSE A K #10,000,000 —  85.82% BEAEFRERES

Tsingtao Brewery (Doumen) Zhuhai, the PRC RMB10,000,000 — 85.82%  Manufacturing and
Malt Company Limited domestic trading

of malt

FESWECEM) BRARA FEEM AR#111,110,000 55% — HERRELEREE
(DEMAR])

Tsingtao Brewery (Luzhou) Luzhou, the PRC RMB111,110,000 55% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Luzhou Company”) of beer

EERE(ER) FRAA FEER 575,000,000 75% — BERRELERES

Tsingtao Brewery (Nanjing) Nanjing, the PRC US$5,000,000 75% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

EERE(EE)FRAA TEEE AR %10,000,000 95% — BERRELERES

Tsingtao Brewery (Sugian) Sugian, the PRC RMB10,000,000 95% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

AREERELTHERR PELR AF%29,980,000 80% 14.25% REEE 5

Tsingtao Brewery Beifang Sales  Beijing, the PRC RMB29,980,000 80% 14.25%  Domestic trading
Company Limited of beer

RRERLESRBHEFRAR FEREE A& %10,000,000 85%  14.25% BIRABEZS

Tsingtao Brewery Haerbin Haerbin, the PRC RMB10,000,000 85% 14.25%  Domestic trading
Northeast Sales of beer
Company Limited

BERE (BW) FRA TEES AR #16,635,592 50%  46.90% BARELERES

Tsingtao Brewery (Laoshan) Qingdao, the PRC RMB16,635,592 50% 46.90%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

BEWE (BM)ESHERRRA TEAENM AR #500,000 — 90% BEREEES

Tsingtao Brewery (Tengzhou) Tengzhou, the PRC RMB500,000 — 90%  Domestic trading

Huaihai Sales Company
Limited

of beer
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BRYAREH

Name of subsidiaries

BRIREREE N

Place of establishment

and principal operation

d2mEX

Registered capital

NG VN

FE 2R E B (%)
Equity interest held
by the Company (%)

EERE BEES
Directly Indirectly
held held

FEEK

Principal activities

BEWE BN ARAF
Tsingtao Brewery (Suzhou)
Company Limited

EERBEERNMMNEERRAA

(TERMMHE])
Tsingtao Brewery Huadong
Hangzhou Sales
Company Limited
(“Huadong Hangzhou”)

EERBEERHEMNEEFRAA

Tsingtao Brewery Huadong
Suzhou Sales Company
Limited

EERENEHEERRAT

Tsingtao Brewery Xinan Sales

Company Limited

EEREGEMN BRAA
Tsingtao Brewery (Suizhou)
Company Limited

FERE (KM ARAR
Tsingtao Brewery (Tianmen)
Company Limited

EERE(GM HERRRA

(TaMEED ()
Tsingtao Brewery (Taizhou)
Sales Company Limited

(“Taizhou Sales”)(i)

BEHEABARAA

Tsingtao Changhong Shangwu

Company Limited

FERERBNRERAR

Tsingtao Brewery Zhaoshang

Logistic Company Limited

TEAR
Taicang, the PRC

R M

Hangzhou, the PRC

B M
Suzhou, the PRC

B X A
Chengdu, the PRC

i i M
Suizhou, the PRC

LN
Tianmen, the PRC

Taizhou the PRC

TEES
Qingdao, the PRC

TEES
Qingdao, the PRC

AR¥5,000,000
RMB5,000,000

AR ¥1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

AR ¥3,000,000
RMB3,000,000

AR 2,000,000
RMB2,000,000

AR 24,000,000
RMB24,000,000

AR 18,000,000
RMB18,000,000

AR 6,800,000

RMB6,800,000

AR 1,000,000
RMB1,000,000

AR 2,000,000
RMB2,000,000

10% 85.50%
10% 85.50%

— 94.05%
(b)(ii)
— 94.05%
(b)(ii)

— 76.10%
— 76.10%

60% 30%
60% 30%

— 85.50%
— 85.50%

— 85.50%
— 85.50%

— 48.45%

— 48.45%

95% =
95% =

51% =
51% =

AEBELERE S

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

AR®EE S

Domestic trading
of beer

AEEE 5
Domestic trading
of beer

AEEE 5
Domestic trading
of beer

AEBELERHE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

REBLERHEE

Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

AREEE S

Domestic trading
of beer

AEHEE

Car rental services

Wik iR R E R
Logistic services and
management
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BRYAREH

Name of subsidiaries

BRIREREE N d2mEX

Place of establishment
and principal operation

Registered capital

NG VN

FE 2R E B (%)
Equity interest held
by the Company (%)

FEEK

Principal activities

EERE BEES
Directly Indirectly
held held

WHMESREHERRAR  FEMM AR ¥1,000,000 —  9469% BR®ERS

Tsingtao Brewery Chenzhou Chenzhou, the PRC RMB1,000,000 — 94.69%  Domestic trading
Sales Company Limited of beer

BEERABRF () HERRAR FEAL AR 2,000,000 — 9030% BER®EES

Tsingtao Brewery Luzhong Weifang, the PRC RMB2,000,000 — 90.30%  Domestic trading
(Weifang) Sales Company of beer
Limited

EERE (EM) FRAAF FEEF A& #10,000,000 80% — BERRELERHEE
(TEFR =)

Tsingtao Brewery (Xiamen) Xiamen, the PRC RMB10,000,000 80% —  Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

(“Xiamen Company”) of beer

EERE(EM) BEFRRA  FEEM AR 1,000,000 — 40% BEAREES
(TEFEE]D )

Tsingtao Brewery (Xiamen) Xiamen, the PRC RMB1,000,000 — 40%  Domestic trading
Sales Company Limited of beer
(“Xiamen Sales”)(i)

EERESLARERAR “22=f-§ A& #10,000,000 — 53.75% A& NI E&H

Tsingtao Brewery Haifeng January 2003 RMB10,000,000 — 53.75%  Warehousing,
Warehouse Company HEES packaging and
Limited Qingdao, the logistics

PRC

EEREEAGR DA ) “TE=F-H AE%1,000,000 30% 5327% ERRELERHE

Tsingtao Brewery Baoji January 2003 RMB1,000,000 30% 53.27%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited (ii) hEEH domestic trading

Baoji, the PRC of beer

() ARBREERESMHAEREFHE
H e & 6f B IER T

M BEMEEHE
NG

(i) Taizhou Sales and Xiamen Sales are consolidated as subsidiaries

of the Group as the Group has control over the financial and

operating policies of Taizhou Sales and Xiamen Sales.

4
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(il R=ZTZT=F—f=
RAREEANUEEREEREREMER
A(TEBERR])  BEARNIMELRS
AK%1,000,0007T * EFRARARARE M
EAR®300,0007T ' HEEL A ZMER
M30%: AXARINEESHEARKE
700,0007C " HEE LR AZEMEARA70% °

TH ARFER

RLEARE-—F=FhE—EHERBKRD
ARAR([EERARR_ZT=F—A
R —HEAR RAEVARSERRD

BENNMNEHEENTHEELAME
BHERARAUREWBELERT - WIME

HETFHEAT - BEAARAAESN
MaEFERAREERERETANN
BB -

b) AR RIFT#A MERT AR MEDRA
EWFE“EWT:

(i) RZEZT=F—A—8  AARZEK
FREEBRBAIMERER LBRERM
N 10% 2 IR #E 5 Bl A A K ¥ 300,0007T &
AR¥100,000CEE T 5 —BRF AR
WMAE e RABREEZSANRHER
BRERMMz BEERDHI4.53%[ D
£94.05% °

(i) RZZEZT=F—A+=H  ARFIHERF
BEBR MR LABRAR ([BEE
B ) ER B - AK AR 40,000,000
TTHBARERMNARERK24%ME - K
RZ % AArh@EMArZMERS
51%E MET75% °

(ii) On 20th January, 2003, the Company and Xian Company, a
subsidiary, jointly invested in a newly incorporated company, namely
Tsingtao Brewery Baoji Company Limited (“Baoji Company”), with
an authorised capital amounting to RMB1,000,000. The Company
injected cash capital of RMB300,000, which accounted for 30% of
the total authorised capital while Xian Company injected cash capital
of RMB700,000, which accounted for the remaining 70% of the

total authorised capital.

Xian Company and a third party company, Baoji Brewery Company
Limited (“Baoji Brewery Company”), entered into a lease agreement
in January 2003, pursuant to which Baoji Brewery Company leases
all its operating fixed assets and seconds its employees to Baoji
Company for the beer production business without any lease rental
consideration. During the lease term, Baoji Company bears all the

operating costs relating to the leased assets and employees.

(b) In current year, there were changes in the equity interests of the

following subsidiaries held by the Company:

(i) On Tst January, 2003, Shanghai Company, a subsidiary of the
Company, transferred 10% of each of its shareholdings in Huadong
Shanghai and Huadong Hangzhou to Wuhu Company, a subsidiary
of the Company, at cash considerations of RMB300,000 and
RMB100,000, respectively. Such transactions have decreased the
indirect shareholdings of the Company in Huadong Shanghai and
Huadong Hangzhou from 94.53% to 94.05% each.

(ii) On 13th January, 2003, the Company entered into an agreement
with Fujian Brewery (Singapore) Pte Limited (“Fujian Brewery”) to
acquire an additional 24% equity interest in Tsingtao Brewery
(Fuzhou) Company Limited (“Fuzhou Company”) at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB40,000,000. After the
transaction, the effective ownership percentage held by the Company

in Fuzhou Company increased from 51% to 75%.
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S RZEE=FF+=ZA+N\B " £A
AZERTARBE AR EEERERE
A - A AR 41,667,000 8B A H
BMDBIBRTH25%RHE - RARHE -
BMNRARKAERRARZZ2EERFARA -
ARNEMERM AT 2 B Hl 5 B AB75%
ERERER2S%EEER

mEELMBEEERF AME12-

(IR -ZBE=FtA-+—H FRFM
HERFAREEEL O ARTEARK
6,000,0007C ° BEESEBEELARA
ZaEMEREE AR 11,000,0007T © [
B AAAEEEELOARFREERN
1 95%3E M E97.73% °

(VRZZE=F+-_ANB - KAATFTH
BERERE ARAR ([REQR]) K
EERBRMEERRAA ([F&ME
£ c ARBRERELRRBMEE D
A 595.22% % 95%2 HE# ©

In addition, on 18th December, 2003, Hong Kong Company, a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with Fujian
Brewery to acquire the remaining 25% equity interest in Fuzhou
Company at a cash consideration of approximately RMB41,667,000.
After the transaction, Fuzhou Company became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, with a direct equity interest of 75% and

indirect equity interest of 25%, respectively.

Investment difference arising from these acquisitions is detailed in

Note 12.

(iii) On 21st July, 2003, the Company injected capital of
RMB6,000,000 into Group Import/Export Company and its registered
capital was also increased to RMB11,000,000. The shareholding of
the Company in Group Import/Export Company increased from 95%

to 97.73% accordingly.

(iv)On 9th December, 2003, the Company dissolved Tsingtao
Brewery Wuhan Company Limited (“Wuhan Company”) and Tsingtao
Brewery Fuzhou Sales Company Limited (“Fuzhou Sales Company”).
Wuhan Company and Fuzhou Sales Company were originally

95.22% and 95%, respectively, held by the Company.
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) RZZFEZE=F+TZA=1+—H " *5E

(c) As at 31st December, 2003, particulars of the principal associated

MEEBBENREROT :

companies of the Group are as follows:

KEQFER BPER dMER KRB TREH EXAREHKE
B REZR LA (%)
Name of associated Place of Registered Equity Principal Ending net
companies establishment capital Interest held activities investment cost
and principal By the Group (%)
operation
EERE  BERS
directly indirectly
held held
EEREGM BRAF  FEHN AR 85,000,000 20% —  BEREERHEWRE —
Tsingtao Brewery Yangzhou, RMB5,000,000 20% — Manufacturing and —
(Yangzhou) the PRC domestic trading
Company Limited of beer
LA PEES AR #70,000,000 37.52%  ERAEER AR¥15,750,359
9N HERSH
Tsingtao Beer and Qingdao, RMB70,000,000 37.52% Manufacturing and RMB15,750,359
Asahi Berverage the PRC domestic trading
Company Limited of beverages
E%%?%@@ H TEER AR #2,000,000 30% —  HEARERS ARE712,156
BRR
Liaoling Shenqing Shenyang, RMB2,000,000 30% = Domestic trading RMB712,156
Tsingtao Brewery the PRC of beer

Sales Company
Limited

BEATNEERRERUAEERAL
/ﬁkﬁf@ &

AMER RREEEER

d R=EF

#a TREERRZ ((BR1HE

—F+—8 ARQEENEKR
EVCEEFR AR (A TEMIEVGAFA])

The operating results of the above associated companies have been

included in the accounts of the Group and the Company using the

equity method.

(d) In November 2001, the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement (“Transfer Agreement”) with Canada EVG Enterprises Inc
EVG  (“EVG”), pursuant to which EVG will acquire 25% equity interest in

NEIRAEBARARIBAMNILR=IRAR Beijing Three Ring Company owned by the Company. As at 31st

5%k c BEZTT=F+-H=+ December, 2003, the consideration had not yet settled and the
—B - EHAEHRHEAKKE - REEEH® Company continued to account for the results of Beijing Three Ring

RIDARRAFAILR=ZRA
RIFRIGRE -

7] 54%4E &

interest held in the Company.

Company in its consolidated accounts based on its 54% equity



—ER=FFERS
ANNUAL REPORT 2003

S HRME (F)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(P BEIg:2£RHER) (Prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP)

RZZEZTWE_F - NABEEVCGA 7] f##
BREZEGS RN AQEHREFEBQAE
ﬂmﬁ*Vﬁﬁiﬁ%wcﬂﬂmﬁH:
N F)25%H) B #E JA 850,000 LB EA E
%@7 R IR R 5 1w 5 R B B RS 5D P
B o REEREE  AEEELER=ZERA
AEEENLEERIE -

e) RZZEZT—F+— R E@REERH
BiE(HEHS) BRATEEREEES
[ BALQEEHEAK96,000,0007T i
EERENEAREERBBEER QA
30%0MkE - WREREESRE (FE)A
RARI([RAERAL) - HENRELET
BR_ZENMF-—ATK - HE-ZTET=
¢+:H7+—H¢'mm$ﬁl%ﬁﬁ
REAMBNLERRRNRBEEATE
BIRARRZRE TUAALR -

il RZZZT_F  XEENSHEHER
BRLEBEERAELHEERARNIHRS
BEEEHERDA - LAWEERF

AER-_TT_FENFEH - I%ﬁ%k

—EF=F

“EE-FAHHER -

—

=
|
H

—ET=F AEEHARUMEANER
FRE AAAEERHEREREAL
AREERBEERRERAR  WEE
RAFEHEGRE -

0|

)

In February 2004, the Company entered into another agreement
with EVG to cancel Transfer Agreement. Besides, the Company and
Hong Kong Company reached an equity transfer agreement in which
the Company will transfer a 25% equity interest in Beijing Three
Ring to Hong Kong Company at a consideration of US$850,000.
This transaction is still awaiting for the approval of relevant PRC
government authorities. After this transaction, the effective interest

remains unchanged.

(e) In November 2001,

Brewery (Cayman Islands) Company Limited (“Tailian Brewery”)

Huanan Holding Company and Tailian

signed an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Company
would acquire 30% equity interest in Guangxi Nanning Wan Tai
Brewery Company Limited (Nanning Brewery) from Tailian Brewery
at a consideration of RMB96,000,000. The name of Nanning Brewery
will also be changed to Tsingtao Beer (Nanning) Company Limited
(“Nanning Company”) afterwards. The legal procedures in relation
to this acquisition were completed subsequently in January 2004.
As at 31st December, 2003, the Group exercised no significant
influence in the financial and operating policies on Nanning

Company and did not account for this investment accordingly.

(f) In 2002, the consolidated accounts of the Group included
Shanghai Tsingtao Brewery Sales Company Limited and Jiangsu
Tsingtao Brewery Sales Company Limited. These two subsidiaries

were dissolved during 2002 and are not consolidated in 2003.

In 2003, the Group established two new subsidiaries, Tsingtao
Brewery Baoji Company Limited and Tsingtao Brewery Haifeng
Warehouse Company Limited and are consolidated in the accounts

in current year.
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5. EES 5. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
(@ &8 (a) Group
Z2R=f+ZA=t-H “ER_E+-A=t-H
31st December, 2003 31st December, 2002
REESE HFEEX HEARY RWESE HEEZX FoARW
Foreign  Exchange RMB Foreign  Exchange RMB
currency Rate equivalents  currency rate  equivalents
halance balance
ARERE Cash — RMB 1,953,642 2,472,224
AREBRIER Bank deposits — RMB 889,531,221 825,140,895
it Subtotal 891,484,863 827,613,119
MNERR Foreign currency Deposits
—E7 — US$ 4,965,005 8.277 41,094,545 3,206,774 8.277 26,544,044
— BT — HK$ 301,212 1.066 321,000 201,338 1.061 213,640
EBESAG Total cash and bank deposits 932,900,408 854,370,803
(b) 27 (b) Company
“ER=f+-A=1-A “ER-E+-A=1-H
31st December, 2003 31st December, 2002
RYESE HFHEEX HEARY REEEE HEEX FaARK
Foreign  Exchange RMB Foreign  Exchange RMB
currency Rate equivalents  currency rate  equivalents
balance balance
N Cash — RMB 815,229 994,212
ARBRIER Bank deposits — RMB 217,644,766 254,467,422
it Subtotal 218,459,995 255,461,634
MNERR Foreign currency deposits
— X7 — US$ 4,751,007 8.277 39,323,257 2,923,001 8.277 24,194,572
— BT — HK$ 39,888 1.066 42,508 —
E¥Eead Total cash and bank deposits 257,825,760 279,656,206
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o ITREEREXZNRSEF - (c) Cash and cash equivalents shown in the cashflow statements
include:
£ NG
Group Company
—2%=% s —¥R=F e

+=A=+-8 +=A=+-8 t=A=+-8 +-A=t+-A

31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,

2003 2002 2003 2002
AR% AR% AR ¥ AR %
RMB RMB RMB RMB
EEES Cash and bank deposits 932,900,408 854,370,803 257,825,760 279,656,206
W =AU ER  Less: Fixed deposits with  (12,015,816) (29,000,000) — (29,000,000)

EHFR terms over

three months
% 3 B8 1 8 Restricted bank (83,134,965) (63,204,739) (28,000,000) =
RITIF K deposits

837,749,627 762,166,064 229,825,760 250,656,206

(d) ZEIBHHBTFAEZLANEEABIM  (d) Restricted bank deposits are pledged deposits required to obtain
R1T

BROEZEREFARITHRIE - trade finance facilities from the banks.
6. EWERE 6. BILLS RECEIVABLE
NG|
Company
—E2E=F —ET-F

+=A=+-8 +=ZA=+-B +=A=+-B +=A=t+-~

31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,

2003 2002 2003 2002

ARK AR % ARK ARK

RMB RMB RMB RMB

BRARESR Commercial bills — 165,000 — 9,000,000
RITELER Bank drafts 50,883,184 65,734,125 5,454,500 62,100,000
50,883,184 65,899,125 5,454,500 71,100,000

NERREROERELR - The bills receivable are all unsecured and they are not pledged for

any banking facilities.
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(FBEEERARR

7. BRERA R RABERERR

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND LONG TERM ACCOUNTS

RECEIVABLE
&8
Group
—22=F

+=A=t-R +zA=t-8

31st December,

31st December,

TE_F

N
Company
—22=f

Ay

—fF

&= &
=<

+=A=t-8 +ZA=+-8

31st December, 31st December,

2003 2002 2003 2002

AR AR ARK AR

RMB RMB RMB RMB

JRE UL BR 3R e Accounts receivable 363,651,899 390,797,788 308,783,195 331,253,400
& HA fe e BR X and long-term

accounts receivable

o ERER Less: Provision for (144,639,318)  (159,267,912) (81,066,480) (91,748,553)
bad debts

219,012,581 231,529,876 227,716,715 239,504,847

FE R 3R e £ B B R R RO R e 0 AT 20

The aging analysis of accounts receivable and long term accounts

DE receivable is as follows:
@ £E (a) Group
=4 e A e “TT-E+-A=+-H
31st December, 2003 31st December, 2002
8 Bl BRER DEHREA L ARl BREE BRI
Amount  Percentage Provision for  Provision Amount  Percentage Provision for  Provision
bad debts  percentage bad debts  percentage
ARE ARE ARE ARE
RMB (%) RMB (%) RMB (%) RMB (%)
—FUR Within one year 128,795,973 35.42%  (2,599,211) 2.02% 125,195,693 32.04%  (4,912,193) 3.92%
—EHRZF Within one to two years 42,273,098 11.62% (12,591,434) 29.79% 56,665,486 14.50% (12,060,933 ) 21.28%
ZESR=F Within two to three years 28,272,347 7.77% (19,311,432) 68.31% 19,219,656 4.92% (17,325,301) 90.14%
=FENE Over three years 164,310,481 45.19% (110,137,241) 67.03% 189,716,953 48.54% (124,969,485 ) 65.87%
Ch Total 363,651,899 100.00% (144,639,318) 39.77% 390,797,788 100.00% (159,267,912) 40.75%
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R-ZZZE=F+-A=+—R F5EEK
RALRABRKEFAREZEEATHNAA
EMu3m3mwﬂ_?7_¢+ A=+
—HB : AR#126,545,00070) * 15 EWERTK
RRBAEKEREFTH34% (ZTT2F 1
ZA=+—H8:32%) °

AEERKREEREIERR K HEKE
R R 2E R GH B T T A 100 MR A B U BR 3K
BHEHARE27,131,000C (ZTZT_F :
AR ¥63,691,0007T) °

As at 31st December, 2003, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
five largest accounts receivable and long-term accounts receivable
balances was approximately RMB123,213,000 (31st December,
2002: RMB126,545,000), being 34% (31st December, 2002: 32%)
of the total accounts receivable and long-term accounts receivable

balances.

During the year, the Group wrote off uncollectible accounts
receivable and long-term accounts receivable from the provision
for bad debts amounting to approximately RMB27,131,000 (2002:
RMB63,691,000).

(b) 27 (b) Company
“2R=Ft-A=1-A “ET-E+-A=+-H
31st December, 2003 31st December, 2002
&8 Bttt BREE EHELS TR Bl BRER BHEERD
Amount  Percentage Provision for  Provision Amount  Percentage Provision for  Provision
bad debts  percentage bad debts  percentage
ARH ARH ARE ARHK
RMB (%) RMB (%) RMB (%) RMB (%)
—FHUA Within one year 144,130,872 46.68%  (1,400,839) 0.97% 131,063,361 39.57%  (2,595,385) 1.98%
—EORCZF Within one to two years 29,827,429 9.66%  (6,378,960) 21.39% 47,579,232 14.36%  (7,538,671) 15.84%
ZEIR=F Within two to three years 18,646,014 6.04% (11,010,959) 59.05% 6,902,579 2.08%  (6,561,987) 95.07%
ZFENE Over three years 116,178,880 37.62% (62,275,722) 53.60% 145,708,228 43.99% (75,052,510) 51.51%
At Total 308,783,195 100.00% (81,066,480) 26.25% 331,253,400 100.00% (91,748,553 ) 27.70%

RZZEZE=F+ZA=+—8 " KAdA

WEFERRHERERA AL SBEEH
HBARY185,203,000 (ZEE=F+=
A=+—8: AR%121,285,0007T) 15

FEU R R K R B R W BR ;A 5T EV60% (=
TE-F+-A=+—H :37%) °
A B A A A e U BR R K% A e U BR 3K

BAREFE N EETE RN ERERA
K ANREE18,246,000C (ZTEZE—F : A
R #33,588,0007T) °

As at 31st December, 2003, the Company’s five largest accounts
receivable and long-term accounts receivable balances amounted
to approximately RMB185,203,000 (31st December, 2002:
RMB121,285,000), being 60% (31st December, 2002: 37%) of the
total accounts receivable and long-term accounts receivable

balances.

During the period, the Company wrote off uncollectible accounts
receivable and long-term accounts receivable from the provision
for bad debts amounting to approximately RMB18,246,000 (2002:
RMB33,588,000).
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RZZFEZ=F+_A=1+—0 AEEK
ARBIH KRR KRB ERESF - 15
ERARTAS% (B5%) A ERARERD K
RRK

0 RZTZT—FE AEERAQAHE—
2EPR—BABAR (ERBIREAD #HE
AR #105,000,0007T B FEUBE X (R
REREFBE BEEARZZER
FR—_TZ-_F—A—BRRENFHH
BREBEERN -REAFE  RRAABRE
AEBRARARAGAEREEF_BHARK
10,000,000 K R K - HAp - AR
4,900,000 AR 2EX EHARK
5,100,0007T Bl A8 3% W & iz 7 R B3R A 5
ENBEERTAARAEEER -BE-T
T=F+-_A=1+—HiE BAREF—E
BEAR4,300,0007T FEEYE B #
WEMARE  RBAR¥S,700,0007T &
HEBRZPHR R_ETE=F+-A=
+—B BEXAEIRHNEERES
BEH AR 14,300,000 kAR
53,808,000 A RIEA R A R A EEHE
EEBERPFREESR K E M RBEKER
AR - EEREEEER D EEHRHKIE
HER (KEE34@) °

As at 31st December, 2003, the Group and the Company had no
accounts receivable and long-term accounts receivable balances
owed from parties who own 5% or above shareholdings in the

Company.

(c) The Company reached a settlement agreement with a customer
and a related company (collectively “the Debtors”) in 2001 in
connection with an aggregate outstanding receivable balance of
RMB105,000,000 (“the Debts”). Pursuant to the agreement, the Debts
are repayable in eight annual installments, commencing from Tst
January, 2002. During the year, the Debtors repaid to the Company
the second installment of the Debts of RMB10,000,000 as stipulated
in the repayment schedule. Out of such amount, RMB4,900,000
was settled in cash while the remaining RMB5,100,000 was settled
by means of the transfer of ownership of two buildings located in
the PRC. As at 31st December, 2003, the transfer of the title of one
building amounting to RMB4,300,000 was still in progress and
therefore, only RMB5,700,000 was deducted from outstanding
balance of the Debts. As at 31st December, 2003, provision for
doubtful debts had been provided for part of the balance. The
remaining outstanding balances of the Debts of RMB14,300,000
and RMB53,808,000 were recorded as accounts receivable and long-
term receivable balance, according to the expected repayment
schedule, in both the balance sheets of the Company and the Group.
Tsingtao Brewery Group Company Limited, a related company, has
undertaken to guarantee the repayment of the outstanding balance

(note 34(a)).
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8. Hith WK 8. OTHER RECEIVABLES
£ YN
Group Company
—E22=F —TT_F —2E=E —TT_F
+=ZA=+-A tZHA=+—-B +=ZA=+-R +ZA=t+—H
31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,
2003 2002 2003 2002
AR ARK AR% ARK
RMB RMB RMB RMB
JEY R A8 Due from subsidiaries — — 219,590,544 494,184,883
JRE LT Bt & % A 3K Due from associated
companies — 6,544 — 6,544
P s ol B 1 ZE R Due from related 45,107,633 47,713,789 27,145,973 42,658,622
companies
H & Ok Others 316,879,075 246,286,942 35,986,461 40,347,782
& &t Total 361,986,708 294,007,275 282,722,978 577,197,831
A ERER Provision for bad debts (54,319,553) (52,784,716) (32,414,087) (33,697,080)
307,667,155 241,222,559 250,308,891 543,500,751
Hitt UK ERE DM T : The aging analysis of other receivables is as follows:
@ &8 (a) Group
ZEZ=E+ZRA=t-H Z3E-§+ZR=1-H
31st December, 2003 31st December, 2002
Ex Bl EEREE DHELA Ec Bfilt  BRERE BRI
Amount  Percentage Provision for  Provision Amount  Percentage Provision for  Provision
bad debts  percentage bad debts  percentage
ARH ARH ARHE ARE
RMB (%) RMB (%) RMB (%) RMB (%)
—FNRA Within one year 228,986,949 63.25%  (2,247,352) 0.98% 84,015,583 28.58%  (1,965,365) 2.34%
—EPRZF Within one to two years 55,260,608 15.27%  (3,268,823) 5.92% 134,380,896 45.70%  (8,049,948) 5.99%
EOR=F Within two to three years 38,041,855 10.51% (11,479,889) 30.18% 37,797,353 12.86% (22,963,812) 60.76%
=ZENE Over three years 39,697,296 10.97% (37,323,489) 94.02% 37,813,443 12.86% (19,805,591) 52.38%
&t Total 361,986,708 100.00% (54,319,553) 15.01% 294,007,275 100.00% (52,784,716 17.95%

4
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RZFZ=F+-A=+—H HtEKR Asat31st December, 2003, the Group’s five largest other receivables
RAREEEETHAARK143,265,291  balances amounted to approximately RMB143,265,291 (31st
(ZZZ=F+=-A=1+—H8: AR December, 2002: RMB106,763,000), being 40% (31st December,
106,763,0007T) - fh E At UL FKEI40% (= 2002: 36%) of the total balance.

(b) 2 F] (b) Company
“2R=Ft-A=1-A “TT-E+-A=+-H
31st December, 2003 31st December, 2002
2 Bttt BREE EHELA ot Bl BRER BEERS
Amount  Percentage Provision for  Provision Amount  Percentage Provision for  Provision
bad debts  percentage bad debts  percentage
ARE ARE ARE ARE
RMB (%) RMB (%) RMB (%) RMB (%)
—FUA Within one year 60,351,112 21.35% (31,092) 0.05% 292,210,659 50.63% = =
—EORCZE Within one to two years 173,499,340 61.36% (53,713) 0.03% 152,142,136 26.36%  (5,643,697) 3.70%
ZESR=F Within two to three years 25,276,388 8.94%  (8,907,428) 35.24% 71,557,707 12.40% (17,609,375) 24.60%
ZFENE Over three years 23,596,138 8.35% (23,421,854) 99.26% 61,287,329 10.61% (10,444,008) 17.04%
Ch Total 282,722,978 100.00% (32,414,087) 11.46% 577,197,831 100.00% (33,697,080 5.84%
RZTT=F+ZA=+—8 HEMEWR As at 31st December, 2003, the Company’s five largest other

RA T BB AARK245,884,000 receivables balances amounted to approximately RMB245,884,000
T(ZEZE-F+=ZA=+—H: AR® (31st December, 2002: RMB358,784,000), being 87% (31st
358,784,0007T) ' HEMEWTES7% (=  December, 2002: 62%) of the total other receivables balance.
FEHFTZAZ+T—H 1 62%) °

o

ARBER—Z=FMNEMEKRFFEE  Included in the Company’s other receivables balance which, aged
REBZERFARINEEESER ZF from one to three years, were mainly loans made to subsidiaries for
AEZRSERFAANEERTRIE financing their working capital. The Company considered that no
RERASBBETREMERES - provision for doubtful debts was necessary after taking into account

the operating results of the subsidiaries.

RZTT=F+=ZA=+—H ' A%EK The Group and the Company had no other receivable balances due
AARMEMBEWTP - HERARDF5%  from parties who own 5% or above shareholdings in the Company.
(85%) A ERRERDHOBRRRK °
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9. AR

BNERNEHEDITWT -

9. PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

The aging analysis of prepayments and deposits is as follows:

@@ &8 (a) Group
—2E=f+-A=1-1H —EE_F+-HA=+—H
31st December, 2003 31st December, 2002
=8 B (%) ! Bt (%)
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
AR ARK
RMB RMB
—F R Less than one year 133,152,529 99.11% 168,269,160 98.85%
—ZPR-F Within one to two years 1,002,165 0.75% 1,323,969 0.78%
—EPR=F Within two to three years 104,559 0.08% 395,491 0.23%
= Over three years 90,077 0.06% 240,876 0.14%
= Total 134,349,330 100.00% 170,229,496 100.00%
(b) 27 (b) Company
—2®=F+-A=t-H “FF_F+-A=t—H
31st December, 2003 31st December, 2002
£8 B2 L (%) o B 1t (%)
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
AR# ARK
RMB RMB
—FA Less than one year 16,793,506 100% 25,486,723 99.23%
—EOREF Within one to two years — — 4,846 0.02%
—EPR=F Within two to three years — — — —
=FNE Over three years — — 192,785 0.75%
CEl Total 16,793,506 100% 25,684,354 100.00%

R-BE=&+-A=+—0  A£ER
AR ANBEAERT - HEERD 5%
(85%) W ERREBRD HRFRHK -

ARBERKRBE—FNRIRTIEABE

XMHES -

The Group and the Company have no prepayments and deposits

balances which was made to parties who own 5% or above

shareholdings in the Company.

Prepayment and deposits balance of the Group aged over one year

was mainly deposits paid for materials purchases.

4
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10.7& 10. INVENTORIES
£B8 NG|
Group Company
—EE=fF —ET-F —EZ=F —2E-F
+=A=+-BH +ZA=+—H +=ZB=+-H +=ZA=+—H
31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,
2003 2002 2003 2002
AR% AR AR¥ AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
GRRE Raw materials 425,140,694 365,491,380 134,133,346 121,295,647
5 Packaging materials 353,727,924 327,321,179 12,077,263 16,487,293
KB 5 & Low-value consumables 251,178,676 264,275,257 34,124,005 35,280,800
N8 By KL and auxiliary materials
ZEMIME Materials on consignment 6,859,009 9,868,109 3,785,599 885,844
EEM Work-in-progress 128,849,769 127,162,892 28,994,890 34,838,876
EK Finished goods 164,877,217 154,335,103 65,660,624 61,668,876
A& Total 1,330,633,289  1,248,453,920 278,775,727 270,457,336
FEREERE Less: Provision for (25,130,185) (24,646,812) (1,022,238) (1,022,238)
realization loss

1,305,503,104  1,223,807,108 277,753,489 269,435,098

FEREZEBENIFTDOT

Provision for realization loss of inventories is analysed as follows:

FONH RE M ARE e FRE
Beginning Additions Write off End of year
AR# AR AR¥ AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
£E Group

R Raw materials 1,562,106 1,643,043 (399,971) 2,805,178
R m Finished goods 9,437,342 196,825 (584,587) 9,049,580
Hh Others 13,647,364 710,260 (1,082,197) 13,275,427
&5 Total 24,646,812 2,550,128 (2,066,755) 25,130,185

NG Company
R R Raw materials 1,022,238 = = 1,022,238
& &t Total 1,022,238 — — 1,022,238
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ARFEEXAR  2HBHRELR
FHEERERKAERE  FHEERAE
RRAERFEN - RAEHFEERTF
ERABDRERFEKEER -

1MN588H

Provision for realisation loss is made based on the excess of original
costs of inventories over their net realisable value when inventories

are damaged, becoming wholly or partially obsolete, or when their

selling prices are lower than their costs.

11. DEFERRED EXPENSES

FOH REEM rEBH EXB EREFRE
Beginning Additions  Amortisation End of year Reasons for the
of year for the year balance retained
at year end
AR AR ARK ARK
RMB RMB RMB RMB
£8 Group
R E Insurance 5,749,297 15,144,147  (13,066,810) 7,826,634 mAREHTE
Not yet fully amortised
BEE Advertising 3,542,306 9,188,538 (9,304,371) 3,426,473 HWARBIHTE
Not yet fully amortised
FEEHEE Rental 520,252 3,885,637 (3,420,082) 985,807 HMAHETE
Not yet fully amortised
HAth Others 3,937,170 36,714,427  (38,767,116) 1,884,481 MABHTE
Not yet fully amortised
CEl Total 13,749,025 64,932,749  (64,558,379) 14,123,395
N Company
R B Insurance 3,479,458 7,111,186 (5,613,172) 4,977,472 HAEHETE
Not yet fully amortised
BB Advertising — 6,847,847 (6,847,847) —
FEMEE Rentl 151,099 1,117,303 (820,852) 447,550 HWAREHTE
Not yet fully amortised
Hit Others — 7,776,436 (7,538,978) 237,458 HWAHETE
Not yet fully amortised
CEi Total 3,630,557 22,852,772 (20,820,849) 5,662,480

4
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12.RERERE

12.LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Group

—BER=F —EECF

+=-A=+-R +-A=+-8

31st December, 31st December,

2003 2002

AR ¥ AR%

RMB RMB

WA & AR (ff7£(i))  Investments in associated companies (ii) 21,202,259 28,452,992
Hun IR ERE (K2t (iii) Other equity investments (iii) 25,837,109 25,711,604
ROKERELER Provision for impairment loss (7,054,780) (4,061,918)
INE Sub-total 39,984,588 50,102,678
EHEZE (Mativ) Consolidation differences (iv) (99,419,846) (170,260,358)
& &t Total (59,435,258) (120,157,680)

Company

—BBR=F —EECF

+=-A=+-H +-F=+—8~

31st December, 31st December,

2003 2002

AR¥ AR

RMB RMB

(K&t 40)

(Note 40)

BENERF AR (F4E() Investments in subsidiaries (i) 1,687,466,851 1,722,465,835
WA & AR (f7£(i))  Investments in associated companies (ii) 5,449,854 5,319,518
H i IR ERE (K2t (iii) Other equity investments (iii) 17,969,562 17,969,562
REREREERE Provision for impairment loss (2,992,862) —
AN Sub-total 1,707,893,405 1,745,754,915
Bg®mE =5 (Maiv) Investment differences (iv) (78,447,024) (118,247,244)

A& Total

1,629,446,381

1,627,507,671
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(i) RRFEEBREZSEZENRERZRME () The details of equity investments accounted for by the equity method are as

mF : follows:
BRIAH ELER  RRE  EMRE C%R-F NAEEME -%8cF A% X3 E i1 3
REBRE AEBRE  RESH  WERA BEEE  RERRR
(HEH)
Name of investees Year of Initial  Additional 2002 total ~ Prior year 2002 total  Changes in Dividends ~ Cumulative 2003 total
commencement i i investment  adjustments i equity received  changesin investment
and cessation (restated) interests during equity
during the years interests
the year
AEE AE# AE# AEE AEE AE# AE¥ AE¥ AE#
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
(Rit40)
(Note 40)
EERE Tsingtao Brewery 2000 287,233,335 — 289,776,100 — 289,776,100 3,848,466 — 6391231 293,624,566
(LB Shanghai Songjiang
ERAR Company Limited
BEREE(ER) Tsingtao Brewery Xian 199 109,618,397 63,287,554 216,006,331 76,100,000 292,106,331 49,374,290  (76,100,000) 92,474,670 265,380,621
BRAF Company Limited
RIEERE Shenzhen Tsingtao Brewery 2001 190,000,000 — 174571175 44,650,000 219,221,175 30,221,739 (44,650,000 14,792,914 204,792,914
3 (#R) Huanan Holding
BRAF Company Limited
AIEBREHA Shenzhen Tsingtao Beer 1997 126,746,680 — 134,872,764 40,290,000 175,162,764 30,689,633 (40,290,000 38,815,717 165,562,397
BRAF Asahi Company Limited
RiEEREREE Shenzhen Tsingtao Brewery 1999 19,000,000 — 76315438 19000000 95315438 55,535,809 (19,000,000 112,851,247 131,851,247
ERAR Sales Company Limited
BBRE(3L) Tsingtao Brewery No. 5 2000 37,625,391 — 57,020,964 — 57,0964 12,569,006 — 30164579 69,789,970
BRAF Company Limited
EERE (BH) Tsingtao Brewery 2001 60,851,224 16,60699 37,688,184 — 37688184 14799473 — 4970559 52,487,657
BRAF (Fuzhou) Company Limited
EERAELT Tsingtao Brewery (Haerbin) 2000 24,770,378 58,000,000 60,092,391 — 60,092,391 (9,962,281) —  (32,640,268) 50,130,110
Company Limited
BBRE (M) Tsingtao Brewery (Luzhou) 2000 61,110,000 — 48,634,976 — 48,634,976 555,112 —  (11,919,912) 49,190,088
BRAF Company Limited
FRZBEARE Beijing Three Rings Asia 2001 37,561,561 — 18427012 — 18,427,012 (3,178,317) —  (22,312,866) 15,248,695
BRAF Pacific Beer Company Limited
i Others 1993 361,323,728 420,287,418 428,820,500 — 428,820,500 (39,411,914) — (392,202,560) 389,408,586
aif Total 1,315,840,694 558,181,964 1,542,425,835 180,040,000 1,722,465,835 145,041,016  (180,040,000) (186,555,807) 1,687,466,851

IR FERABRREA(RESHEREESRME  The prior year adjustment was the adjustment made on dividends
#BEEE (0038 ) HEEFFE%RS  proposed and distributed after accounting year end as a result of
BRFEHMAE o o - REEKRAKXZR  the adoption of the Accounting Standards for business Enterprises
ANRESRU T EEERRH - — Cai hui [2003] Number 12 “Events After the Balance Sheet Date

(2003) revised”. In addition, there are no material restrictions on

realisation of investments held by the Group and the Company.
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(i) REBRAARNE B QB BE

(ii) The Group’s and the Company’s main investments in associates

REMT : are as follows:
BENT FOB AEREHEE G FRE
Name of investees Balance as at Increase/ Balance as at
beginning of year (decrease) in year end
equity during
the year
AR#K ARK ARK
RMB RMB RMB
MEREERT Canada Qinghua Company 2,077,625 — 2,077,625
Hity Others 3,241,893 130,336 3,372,229
NEEE Company total 5,319,518 130,336 5,449,854
BEERBEH ALK Tsingtao Beer and Asahi 23,131,428 (7,381,069) 15,750,359
AR QA Beverage Company Limited
H At Others 2,046 — 2,046
EEAE Group total 28,452,992 (7,250,733) 21,202,259
(i) = At IR R & (ili)Other equity investments
—2F=f+-RA=+-H
31st December, 2003
RREAREE RESH HHREDT
&t i & A<t A
Name of investees Investment Proportion of
amount interests held
by the Company
to the registered
capital of the
investees
ARH
RMB (%)
LBBERABERAR Shanghai International Ming Jiu Development Corporation 7,000,000 17.5%
RAEHER7(a) Tianjin Lianying Corporation (a) 4,884,300 60%
SERmELT Tsingtao Yingxiao Club 3,985,261 25%
H 1 Others 2,100,001
NAlAE Company total 17,969,562 17%
EFILEEHE Guangxi Bei Hai Real Estate 3,610,000
H Others 4,257,547
SEAE Group total 25,837,109

(a) AEBEBEERTELE
) E) B S M AR R

FAREHER  (a) The Group does not exercise substantial influence over the

financial and operating policies of Tianjin Lianying Corporation.
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(VAEERADANEEAHES RE

(iv) The details of the consolidated differences/investment differences

REZHEWT - are as follows:
BRYAH FERRE NreR ENEE RERM TEBE EXEH
Name of Investees Reason of Initial Beginning  Additions in Amortization Unamortized
formation  investment Balance  current year of current year Balance
BFEMELBMIT  Tsingtao Brewery WBE  (133,483,335) (105,581,641) — 13,348,333 (92,233,308)
LN Shanghai Songjiang ~ Acquisitions
Company Limited
ERREFBRAR  Beijing Five Star Wi (54,539,713)  (45,449,761) — 5,453,971 (39,995,790)
Company Limited Acquisitions
ER=BERRE  Beijing Three Rings W# 49,285,564 41,071,303 —  (4,928,556) 36,142,747
Company Limited Acquisitions
BHAE Fuzhou Company W8 64192777 35321,666 23,437,009  (6,028,661) 52,730,014
Acquisitions
Eftr Others W8 (84,810,564) (43,608,811) — 8,518,124 (35,090,687
Acquisitions
ARAF Company total (159,355,271) (118,247,244) 23,437,009 16,363,211  (78,447,024)
SEARE Indirectly-held (44,600,685) (52,013,114) 24,269,122 6,771,170 (20,972,822)
BRFRA subsidiaries of the Group
SBAE Group Total (203,955,956) (170,260,358) 47,706,131 23,134,381  (99,419,846)
AEERARBINEHEZ REIEZE  The consolidation differences/investment differences of the Group
BERTFABREEE - and the Company are amortised over 10 years based on the straight

line method.

4
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13. FIXED ASSETS

The movements of fixed assets are as follows:

(@) & (a) Group
3 g3
“ZE2=%+-H=t-H +ZA=+-H
31st December, 2003 31st December,
2002
L 5 AR B R ERRE Hirz @t BT
EEREBEY
Land use Plant and Motor Equipment Total Total
right and machinery vehicles
Building
RE Original cost
FNEH Beginning of year 2,650,470,907 5,028,556,782 405,582,268 206,891,452  8,291,501,409 7,784,843,365
B/ 5 1R AR Effect on establishment/
FRBRIZHE acquisition of subsidiaries = = = = — 163,850,701
ERIEEA Transfer-in from construction- 87,764,183 265,435,058 793,144 3,905,540 357,897,925 333,304,512
in-progress
AREH i 3E Additions 21,840,762 89,687,240 20,719,636 33,140,071 165,387,709 147,911,724
RERD Disposals (15,258,937)  (122,958,056)  (24,047,912)  (12,957,404) (175,222,309)  (138,408,893)
FRE End of year 2,744,816,915  5,260,721,024 403,047,136 230,979,659  8,639,564,734  8,291,501,409
Rt & Accumulated depreciation
FPEH Beginning of year 636,042,220  2,115,890,084 140,395,905 96,455,156  2,988,783,365  2,568,252,253
PR/ FIWHEME Effect on establishment/ = = = = = 58,792,154
FREZHE acquisition of subsidiaries
REG1E Charge for the year 70,753,779 352,784,216 38,928,470 34,849,403 497,315,868 457,345,228
RERD Written back on disposal (4,682,742)  (64,844,829)  (13,511,587)  (12,263,825)  (95,302,983)  (95,606,270)
FRHE End of year 702,113,257  2,403,829,471 165,812,788 119,040,734 3,390,796,250  2,988,783,365
FE Net book value
FE Beginning of year 2,014,428,687 2,912,666,698 265,186,363 110,436,296 5,302,718,044 5,216,591,112
FRE End of year 2,042,703,658  2,856,891,553 237,234,348 111,938,925 5,248,768,484 5,302,718,044
EERE Impairment loss
FE Beginning of year 39,937,103 55,699,149 2,690,550 = 98,326,802 57,984,575
REFR Charge for the year 505,129 45,210,288 587,159 — 46,302,576 40,342,227
REFH D> Deduction (7,698,698)  (11,998,595) (173,635) —  (19,870,928) -
FRE End of year 32,743,534 88,910,842 3,104,074 — 124,758,450 98,326,802
FH Net book value
FPE Beginning of year 1,974,491,584  2,856,967,549 262,495,813 110,436,296 5,204,391,242  5,158,606,537
FRE End of year 2,009,960,124  2,767,980,711 234,130,274 111,938,925 5,124,010,034  5,204,391,242
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AEEREAFERFTEHNARY,106,0007T
(ZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H : 68,799,000
T NERRUARNEENTERFRNARE
28,000,000cEAER (ZTET=_F+=A
St+t—H:UBETIHERE FEEE
W MEERE BRRERHEMREER
BER HEEBEEREFENRARE
194,329,0007T) °

RZZFZ=F+-A=+—RH RxEEF
BEHAR®356,360,000 (ZTET-_F+
ZR=+—H8: AK%419,506,0007T)
FERZEVN(EEMBER) HAFHRE -
R2ZFXEEMER®E  ARAREZER
EASBRARABEZS(EEMAE
B EAFEEEHAEERER Bt EAR
SENEEREVYTEREATE  NE
At REITEEREER - o AEE
HNEEREM DL ER S BFEE L
ko HEFLEMES -

Approximately RMB1,106,000 (31st 2002:
RMB68,799,000) of the Group’s loans are secured by fixed deposits
of approximately RMB28,000,000 (31st December, 2002: secured

by land use rights, building, plant and machinery, motor vehicles

December,

and other equipment with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB194,329,000).

As at 31st December, 2003, the building ownership certificates
(“Building Ownership Certificates”) for certain buildings of the Group
with carrying value of approximately RMB356,360,000 (31st
December, 2002: RMB419,506,000) had not yet been obtained.
After consultation made with the Company’s legal adviser, the
Company’s directors consider that there is no legal restriction for
the Group and the Company to apply for and obtain the Buildings
Ownership Certificates and it should not lead to any significant
adverse impact on the operations of the Group and the Company.
Accordingly, no provision for fixed assets impairment was considered
necessary. For certain buildings of the Group located on parcels of
allocated lands granted by local governments, please refer to Note

15 for details.
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(b) & F (b) Company
3 Sy -3
T=A=T=E
“EE-FE+ZfA=t-H 31st December,
31st December, 2003 2002
EEREREY BERE ERRE Ht R EH) o
Building Plant and Motor Equipment Total Total
machinery vehicles
RE Original cost
0% Beginning of year 554,865,184  1,178,082,975 156,765,322 87,194,036 1,976,907,517 1,948,510,031
ERTIREA Transfer from CIP (1,268,985) 56,257,733 = 1,503,339 56,492,087 84,469,494
AREE MM Additions 1,014,000 12,586,680 1,394,329 18,831,868 33,826,877 26,809,549
RERD Disposals (1,860,821)  (52,098,501)  (13,338,304)  (8,460,103)  (75,757,729)  (82,881,557)
FRY End of year 552,749,378 1,194,828,887 144,821,347 99,069,140  1,991,468,752  1,976,907,517
EHE Accumulated depreciation
ENY Beginning of year 147,827,085 693,524,567 62,683,143 44,440,433 948,475,228 885,989,082
KEFR Charge for the year 14,055,787 72,590,191 14,956,677 12,291,266 113,893,921 112,285,137
RERD Written back on disposal (400,708)  (19,634,878)  (7,751,796)  (8,080,628)  (35,868,010)  (49,798,991)
ERY End of year 161,482,164 746,479,880 69,888,024 48,651,071  1,026,501,139 948,475,228
BE Net book value
FENY Beginning of year 407,038,099 484,558,408 94,082,179 42,753,603  1,028,432,289 1,062,520,949
FRY End of year 391,267,214 448,349,007 74,933,323 50,418,069 964,967,613 1,028,432,289
EEHE Impairment loss
EE Beginning of year = 8,000,000 = = 8,000,000 -
REHE Charge for the year — 3,937,607 5,950 = 3,943,557 8,000,000
RERD Deduction = (5,052,807) = = (5,052,807) =
ERY End of year = 6,884,800 5,950 = 6,890,750 8,000,000
BE Net book value
FNY Beginning of year 407,038,099 476,558,408 94,082,179 42,753,603  1,020,432,289 1,062,520,949
EXRH End of year 391,267,214 441,464,207 74,927,373 50,418,009 958,076,863 1,020,432,289
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14, EEIRE 14. CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS
IRAH BER E98  AEEN  KAFELN AFEH EXY EERE IR AL
EELE REHLA
Construction project Budgeted  Beginning  Additions  Transfer to Transfer out End of year Sources of financing  Proportion
amount of year fixed assets of amount
invested
) . ) ) J ) to budget
ARE AR# ARE AR# ARE AR#
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
“HEERNE Plant 1 production line 73,445,000 29,379,746 30,453,927 (35,780,339)  (1,104,774) 22,948,560 5% 81%
improvement Internally generated fund
“HEERYE Plant 2 production line 29,159,000 5,183,971 18,811,235 (12,904,463) — 11,000,743 BBEZ 82%
improvement Internally generated fund
MEEESHE  Plant4 production line 97,971,000 593,393 8,230,207 (6,717,373 (1,467317) 639,000 EFEL 9%
. improvement Internally generated fund
NHERE New factory plant 32,117,000 29,055,553 3,061,650 —  (4794597) 27322606 BEEE 100%
Internally generated fund
EFBREERYE  Malt production line 60,400,000 5,764,777 1,256,011  (1,089,912) — 5,930,876 a‘ﬁ‘ﬁ 12%
improvement Internally generated fund
2 Others 416,000 31,580 384,000 - — 415580 HAEL 100%
Internally generated fund
NG Company total 293,508,000 70,009,020 62,197,120 (56,492,087) (7,366,688) 68,347,365
BRTAE Production line
MEER improvements in
i subsidiaries: ;
[y oNGIL Xian Company production 115,961,000 6,416,751 36,854,683 (30,984,318)  (977,011) 11,310,105 EHES 37%
ERWE line improvement Internally generated fund
LYV Xingkaihu Company production 2,353,000 83,153 664269  (326001) (27,0000 394421 EBE%E 32%
EERNE line improvement Internally generated fund
RBAEEESR  Rongcheng Company production 38,976,000 681536 2,037,697  (2,676,357) (87) 4,780 BHEE 7%
g line improvement InternaIJY enerated fund
ERATEER  Huangshi Company production 92,478,000 10,484,238 68,182,888 (502,857) — 78164260 BERRAGES 85%
i line improvement Bank loans and internally
generated fund
SKRALER Sanshui Company production 58,503,000 10,167,228 19,801,017 (29,503,177) = 465,068 £ 51%
HiE line improvement Internally generated fund
BNDALES  Tengzhou Company production 9,410,000 1,235,955 4,713,496  (4,363,118)  (260,100) 1,326,233 EEE%S 63%
XiE line improvement Internally generated fund
KBAREESR  Zhuhai Company production 44,000,000 4,170,446 24,165,847 — — 28336293 EBHED 64%
& line improvement Internally generated fund
ENRTEER No. 5 Company production 40,019,000 8,495,080 15,336,136 (16,780,482) (1,727,963) 5,322,771 Eﬁﬁ 60%
NiE line improvement Internally generated fund
BROFALES  Penglai Company production 38,224,000 29,449,135 8,775,173 (37,822,921) (401,387 — BHHES 100%
i line improvement Internally generated fund
HWMAR4EESR  Chenzhou Company production 12,088,000 1,397,405 10,690,269 (12,041,435 (46,239) — BEES 100%
ik line improvement Internally generated fund
EHNALER Weifeng Company production 3,934,000 19,090 2,094,458  (2,024,649) = 88,899 B 54%
K& line improvement Internally generated fund
ZHLRMEER  Xuzhou Pencheng Company 8,220,000 — 5,129,806 (5,129,806) = — HEES 62%
i production line improvement Internally generated fund
BALEEER  Shougung Company Production 6,861,000 38,024 3,359,668  (2,377,784) — 1019908 BAEE 54%
W& line improvement Internally generated fund
FR=BRA Beijing Three Rings Company 6,283,000 782,446 2,886,225  (1,190,887) — 2477784 BEES% 53%
TERME proguc tion line improvement Internally generated fund
IRAEAT Beijing Five Stars Company 4524000 401,968 2,519,637  (1,263,949) — 1657656 EEA% 65%
EERYE production line improvement Internally generated fund
AIBHB AR Shenzhen Asahi Company 16,010,000 2,332,445 4,463,017  (6,740,422) — 55040 BHEZ 42%
EH%iE production line improvement Internally generated fund
BYRALES  Langfang Company production 123,682,000 31,116,103 14,516,583  (45,514,199) — 118487 a‘ﬁ‘ﬁ 37%
iE line improvement Internally generated fund
BMAFEES  Luzhou Company production 13,074,000 4,253,917 5,736,349 (8,543,930) — 144633 BAAE 76%
M line improvement Internally generated fund
BMARAEESR  Fuzhou Company production 23,591,000 8,388,271 6,998,140  (4,912,484) — 10473927 HBEE% 65%
ik line improvement Internally generated fund
EMERFAE  Other subsidiaries Production 183,635,000 23,501,062 78,917,645 (88,707,062) (9,767,224) 3,944,421 25 56%
FERNE line improvement Internally generated fund
SEAH Group total 1,135,334,000 213,423,273 380,040,123 (357,897,925) (20,573,699) 214,991,772
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ARERETEERERIRERERAN
ERMEFRAETRER(L - AREXFE

AR E AL FE E4.78% (

TR _F

3.95%%5.72%) °c NEBRAKREFIAE R
AR#1,815,000T (ZEE
—F: AR#818,0007T) °

(: Rl

To the extent that the funds are specifically borrowed and used to
finance the acquisition and construction of fixed assets and
construction-in-progress, the capitalisation rate used to determine
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as part of
the costs of the related assets is 4.78% per annum (2002: 3.95% to
5.72% per annum) for the year. During the year, the Group
capitalised approximately RMB1,815,000 (2002: RMB818,000) of

its borrowing costs in the construction-in-progress.

5. 8FEE 15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(@ &8 (a) Group
R FheE ZTH8E ERy  AEEN  AFEY  AF@H EXH A BEHR
BHER
Nature Original Accumulated  Beginning  Additions Transfer out Amortisation End of year ~ Remaining Source of financing
cost amortisation of year years of
amortisation
(year)
ARE ARK ARK ARK ARE ARK ARK
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
L Trademarks 129,488,196 30,347,332 104,338,751 = —  (5197,887) 99,140,864 3308 RERARR
330 URRFAR
Injection from
shareholders and
acquisition of
subsidiaries
TiFERR Land use rights 668,037,349 111,051,715 583,807,874 7,259,681  (7,772,864) (26,309,057) 556,985,634  40-506 BARKILEHK
40-50  F27
Purchase and
acquisition of
subsidiaries
BA R Technology 18,629,100 8,383,094 12,108,916 - —  (1,862,910) 10,246,006 558 DHRERA
know-how 5.5 Injection from minority
shareholders
Hft Others 23,689,011 4925925 16,358,743 3,900,700 —  (1,496,357) 18,763,086 095 BARRLE
0-9 RFAH
Purchase and
acquisition of
subsidiaries
CEH Total 839,843,656 154,708,066 716,614,284 11,160,381  (7,772,864) (34,866,211) 685,135,590
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(b) & F (b) Company
12H RReR ZRHBER £O8  AFEN  AEEH  KFHEH EXRY i BRERR
BHEER
Items Original Accumulated  Beginning  Additions Transfer out Amortisation End of year ~ Remaining Source of financing
cost amortisation of year years of
amortisation
(year)
ARH AEH# ARH AEH# ARH AEH AE¥
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
B Trademarks 100,000,000 26,249,967 76,250,033 — — (2,500,000) 73,750,033 30 REZEA
Injection from
shareholders
T ERE Land use rights 87,411,367 18,264,333 71,371,312 — (563,607)  (1,660,611) 69,147,034 40 BA
Acquisition
Efh Others 8,921,913 1304271 4,546,224 3,696,864 = (625,446) 7,617,642 0-9 BA
Acquisition
At Total 196,333,280 45,818,571 152,167,569 3,696,864 (563,667)  (4,786,057) 150,514,709

BE-EE=F+-A=+—8 K£E
BEFEHARE35,499,000C (ZET—F
TZA=+—H: AR%¥42,484,0007T) &
THHAEB T HERZ) MFRE - €2
ZrEBRERR  ARTEFEERAN
EEPBEZS(RAELHERR)ERFE
BEEMREZER  ANHAEEMNER
BBV TITHEKNEATE  TEEFREV
BEREBEER -

Wi RZFE=FF+=ZA=+—H "' &
SEABMKERBREN T AR T
FERFERTALE TSR T - K
NEBM BN AZEEZS T E
FE - EZSIHENERRENFAEHS
WAR136,317,000t (ZET_F+=
A=+—H8: AK%121,952,0007t) ° &
AREEERA LilTHHAEEMIE
FEEBEUTERNEATE - REEINEH
BE¥zEER T hEREEALETI NN
FiE-

As at 31st December, 2003, land use right certificates (“Land
Certificates”) of certain parcels of land of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB35,499,000 (31st
December, 2002: RMB42,484,000) had not yet been obtained. After
consultation made with the Company’s legal adviser, the Company’s
board of directors consider that there is no legal restriction for the
Group to apply for and obtain the Land Certificates, it should not
lead to any significant adverse impact on the operations of the
Group and the Company. Accordingly, no provision for fixed assets

impairment was considered necessary.

In addition, as at 31st December, 2003, certain operating facilities
of the Group were located on parcels of allocated land (“Allocated
Lands”) granted by certain local municipal governments to the
previous operating parties of the facilities. Majority of the local
municipal governments have agreed to process the legal title transfer.
As at 31st December, 2003, the carrying values of the associated
buildings and facilities constructed thereon were approximately
RMB136,317,000 (31st December, 2002: REMB121,952,000). In the
view of the Company’s Board of Directors, there would not be any
significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group. The Group
is in the process of applying for the transfer of the legal title of

these Allocated Lands to the Group.
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In the opinion of the Company’s Directors, the underlying value of
these assets was not less than their carrying value in the books of

the Company and of the Group as at 31st December, 2003.

16.REGHER 16.LONG-TERM DEFERRED ASSETS
@ & (a) Group
%A RRE®  FAREH EN8  AEEN  AEEH EFN | bl
B BEBR
Items Original Accumulated ~ Beginning  Additions Amortisation  End of year ~ Remaining
cost amortisation of year years of
amottisation
ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
RARHEEER  Advertising expenses 3,000,000 775,000 2,525,000 — (300,000 2,225,000 75
7 years
ZEREAERAE  Angiu Company-building 1,570,681 837,088 916,230 —  (182,637) 733,593 3E
usage rights 3 years
BRAFAGIER  Xian Company-Greenery 2,225,117 1,127,193 1,097,026 253,989 (253,091) 1,097,924 3-45
expenditures 3-4 years
EHARAKEER  Yingcheng Company- 2,000,000 1,366,694 1,033,314 — (400,008 633,306 25
improvement expenses 2 years
Eft Others 2,893,369 1,498,830 1255335 1,095,231  (956,027) 1,394,539
At Total 11,689,167 5,604,805 6,826,905 1,349,220  (2,091,763) 6,084,362
(b) 27 (b) Company
A Ree®E  EXR&q EN8  AEEMN  AEHH EXY bl
B BEAR
Items Original Accumulated  Beginning  Additions Amortisation  End of year ~ Remaining
cost amortisation of year years of
amottisation
ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
RNEAAHBEEER  Advertising expenses 3,000,000 775,000 2,525,000 — (300,000 2,225,000 7E
7 years
Eft Others 506,000 151,800 455,400 —  (101,2000 354,200 3.5%
3.5 years
At Total 3,506,000 926,800 2,980,400 — (401,200 2,579,200
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17.LOANS

Borrowing rates of the Group and the Company are determined

based on the announced rates of the People’s Bank of China.

(a) Short-term loans and current portion of long-term loans

AT
Company
& SR —E8=H —TT_F
+=ZA=+—-H +ZR=+-—H
Types 31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,
2003 2002 2003 2002
ARH ARK ARH AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ERER Secured loans 1,105,557 81,996,961 — !
ERER Guaranteed loans
— BB R — by related parties 4,617,237 875,005,661 4,617,237 355,515,661
— RRAER — by the Company 374,682,525 804,990,000 — —
— BERFaE — by minority — 125,000,000 — —
DERR shareholders of
ER subsidiaries
ERERX Loans on open credit 983,593,226 892,543,101 599,899,000 626,000,000
At Total 1,363,998,545  2,779,535,723 604,516,237 981,515,661
1 HIfE Short-term loans 1,302,612,990  2,669,481,347 579,369,000 946,000,000
—FAE Current portion of 61,385,555 110,054,376 25,147,237 35,515,661
REER long-term bank loans
CEl Total 1,363,998,545  2,779,535,723 604,516,237 981,515,661

R_EE=F+_A
R

at
(U

=t—H ' AREY

BHEREENRHRTER -

As at 31st December, 2003, the Group had no overdue short-term

loans that had not yet been repaid.

4
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BRETED)

(b) 514 %K

(b) Long-term bank loans

=fF —ZZ

D
Company

NH

S

BE +t=A=+-H +t=ZA=t=-H +t=H=+=H +t=A=1—H
Types 31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,
2003 2002 2003 2002
ARM AR% AR# AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
R 5 X Secured loans — 1,101,225 - =
ERER Guaranteed loans 23,564,000 48,218,934 23,564,000 48,218,934
EAER Loans on open credit 30,219,722 41,323,361 - =
53,783,722 90,643,520 23,564,000 48,218,934
BRADH Analysis on repayment terms
£M AR
Group Company
BRTER ROER
Bank loans Bank loans
ik ik
ERER NEBE FEER ARWHE NEBE FEEX ARWMHE
Loan terms Foreign currency  Exchange RMB Foreign  Exchange RMB
balances rate equivalents  currency rate  equivalents
balances
—ZRERIH Maturity within one to two years
— &R — Danish Krone 400,000 13793 551,720 = — =
— B — Euro 158,618 10.15 1,609,205 — — =
— ARE — RMB — — 21,820,000 — — 19,220,000
—E=ERIH Maturity within two to three years
— &R — Danish Krone 400,000 13793 551,720 — — =
— B — Euro 158,618 10.15 1,609,205 — — =
— ARE — RMB = — 4,344,000 — — 4,344,000
SERERIH Maturity within three to five years
— &R — Danish Krone 800,000 13793 1,103,440 — — =
— B — Euro 317,236 10.15 3,220,022 — — =
— ARE — RMB = = = = = =
RENFIH Maturity over five years
— AERH — Danish Krone 5,000,000 13793 6,897,008 — — =
— B — Euro 1,169,735 10.15 11,877,402 = = =
— ARE — RMB = — 200,000 — — =
B3t Total 53,783,722 23,564,000
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o ARBRARRZERPDAINEHAR
M49 394,000 (ZZEZE-F : ARK
89,368,00070) & A K # 44,094,000t (=
TT-F : AR¥71,368,0007T) MfE K2
RERFARMEHEBEASFILKEFE
REEE FREXBELIFFNER1.63%
£6.90% (ZFTZF : 0.65%£7.25%) °

AEERARBANERRAESIIBEAR
%4 617,237 T (ZEZ_F+-_A=+—

t AEE — AR¥875,006,0007T © AN
2 E — AR#355,516,0007T) M EEH b %
REUGEHAER - I REERKAFIE
R (ZEZE_F+__A=+—H : AR
125,000,0007T) f& KA =R F 2 & D Bk
REHER -

AEERERFERFTEHNARY,106,0007T
(ZEZEZF+ZA=+—H: AR%
68,799,0007T) K {& 2 A A S B K EHF
FH AR 28,000,000 EAER o (=

“HE+ZA=+T—B:HNEBEY
194,329, oooﬁﬁﬁ”?imﬁﬂ%% CBE®
Y MERE BRIEREMEREE
BER) o

m%$ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ1ﬁ§$%‘eﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ

CHAEER-_TE=F+A=1+—
H ﬁiﬁ>§a7néﬁﬁ%i’9/&%74z 431,0007C
(ZZET-F+ZA=+—8: AR%
2,113,180,0007T) * RARIEEB B LAE
B A] 2 K E 6 8 E R 1T 8 TR B B (E
BHINTRERERREENEHE

oo BbAh - M 22fF - RRBERZ
ZEMF=A=1+—HKIA-BRARER
DRIBETAEBRABESFABRFKBEEH

254,138,000 ;¢ (T & H AR ¥
270,835,0007T) °

(c) Pursuant to debt restructuring agreements or acquisition
agreements of certain subsidiaries, interest charges to be levied on
approximately RMB49,394,000 (2002: RMB89,368,000) and
RMB44,094,000 (2002: RMB71,368,000) of the loan balance of the
Group and of the Company, respectively, were waived by the lenders
at no consideration. The remaining outstanding loan balances are
interest-bearing at rates ranging from 1.63% to 6.90% per annum
(2002: 0.65% to 7.25%).

Loans of the Group and of the Company amounting to approximately
RMB4,617,237 (31st December, 2002: Group — RMB875,006,000,
Company — RMB355,516,000), respectively, are guaranteed by
related companies of the Group in 2003. None (31st December,
2002: RMB125,000,000) of the loans of the Group was guaranteed
by the minority shareholders of the subsidiaries in 2003.

Approximately RMB1,106,000 (31st 2002:
RMB68,799,000) of the loans of the Group are secured by fixed
deposits of approximately RMB28,000,000 (31st December, 2002:

December,

secured by land use rights, building, plant and machinery, motor
vehicles and other equipment with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB194,329,000).

Most of the bank financing of the Group is in the form of short-term
bank loans. As a result, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB742,431,000 as at 31st December, 2003 (31st
December, 2002: RMB2,113,180,000). The board of directors of
the Company is confident that the Group will be able to renew its
short-term bank loan facilities upon maturity or to identify new
sources of financing to replace the current ones. In addition, as
mentioned in Note 22, the Company received the remaining
proceeds of approximately HK$254,138,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB270,835,000) associated with the issuance of
convertible bonds to A-B Company on 31st March, 2004.
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18.ENER 18.BILLS PAYABLE
£B8 NG|
Group Company
—EE=fF —ET-F —EE=F —TE_F
+=A=+-8B +=-A=+—-H +=ZHA=+—-8B +=-A=+—H
31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,
2003 2002 2003 2002
AR AR AR¥ AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
PERLESR Commercial bills 117,585,257 145,316,251 99,384,500 124,375,903
RITEHESR Bank drafts 407,864,252 290,311,976 — =
= Total 525,449,509 435,628,227 99,384,500 124,375,903

ARERARRARATFANRITALER
2EHRNEA R E -

19.BAERXR  ARRRAREMENR

AEBRAREHEMKIE - ﬁ%%m
HtERRP - HERFRRE % (B
5%) A E R I IR R BB AL §) R IE o %@i
i3 5 #O KRR B AN AR 3R I EL At R 5P 3039 B IR
BERFRAAKRAENEE - REKBE—
FHNREERTIEREFPFBENEMNE
£ o

The bank drafts of the Group and the Company will reach maturity

within 6 months after the balance sheet date.

19.ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS, AND
OTHER PAYABLES

The Group and the Company did not have any payable balances
which were due to parties having 5% or above shareholdings in the
Company. The accounts payable and other payables aged over 3
years were mainly due to balances acquired from subsidiaries upon
acquisitions. Advance from customers aged over 1 year were mainly

deposits for purchases.
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20.EXH & 20. TAXES PAYABLE
£H A
Group Company
—EE=F —ET_F —EE=F —ET_F
+t=ZA=+—-B +=ZHA=+—H t+=ZA=+—-H +=ZH=+—H
31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,
2003 2002 2003 2002
AR# AR AR AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
JER B BT %R Value added tax payable, 10,757,817 2,126,503 4,509,948 (3,066,889)
net
EXEERFHE Consumption tax payable 111,646,338 111,163,002 9,676,964 7,078,821
ERMEH % Enterprise income 47,519,934 2,884,790 23,972,519 (4,450,281)
tax payable
HAh Others 10,805,738 3,313,363 7,009,005 (2,742,165)
& Total 180,729,827 119,487,658 45,168,436 (3,180,514)
21.81R &R 21.ACCRUALS
58 AF
Group Company
—EBE=F —ET-F —EE=F —ERT-F
+-—A=+-A +=ZA=+—H +=ZBA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,
2003 2002 2003 2002
AE# AR AR#¥ ARK
RMB RMB RMB RMB
HEREHER Selling & transportation 18,423,591 16,079,754 2,555,370 3,313,892
expenses
MEER Interest expenses 11,241,335 1,367,031 8,595,201 =
Bi B Audit fee 3,693,035 4,960,170 3,693,035 4,960,170
K-EEA Utilities 3,908,260 3,275,586 = —
OB R R Import duties on materials — 916,278 — 916,278
Ht Others 25,585,386 19,594,443 3,512,492 1,193,177
&% Total 62,851,607 46,193,262 18,356,098 10,383,517

4
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22, TMEBATEF

RZBTZE_F+A-+—B KARFAHE—
AHBRRER - 2B - M5 BEEERER
X & (Anheuser — Busch Companies Inc.)
(TA-BA]) #FI — (B UERE =R
HHEMRER_ZZT=FRHIE A28
=BHORA-BATIAR SR B HEITEEER
B NEES  1EEH41,416,195,000/&
7t (316 # AR %1,507,990,0007T) + 3 A]
ERTIREBERE®RAQENE
308,219,178 H% :

F-BRUBRATES

E—HNEFRELETR280,800,000%
Tt (& HARE297,999,0007T) ' ER=
TT=FMAET  ABRATER-FTZ
“FLAZRAUER468BT TEHNAR
#4.967T) #)18 1& B K A 22 5160,000,000
IRFTIEHIR - E—HOBEHFREFEES -

FoBRUEBRATES

E_BHEFNARBEASE /627,120,000
BT (FAEHARK668,322,0007T) © ER
“ET=FNARIT ABRARIRINEH
RBEERN7TFENRN - AIATRA68E T
(TEHARK4967T) BIREHRK AR A
134,000,000% 3738 HAR © &M% 7F HR A
WMii;WuﬁAHHﬁEE?WéEHE%Eibﬁ;ﬂ& 0
HH AT BRRBAEFHFNER2%
@A-B’Aﬂﬂﬁ&%ﬁ;}ﬂxﬁﬁaﬁmﬂi A fFHY
FMEBAREENTEN -

BEXABEHERY  A-B RAADRITRE
A HE o

22. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 21st October, 2002,

Companies, Inc (“A-B Company”), a shareholder of H Shares, entered

the Company and Anheuser-Busch

into a strategic investment agreement, pursuant to which A-B
Company is obliged to subscribe for 3 tranches of mandatory
convertible bonds (“CB”) to be issued by the Company with an
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$1,416,195,000
(RMB1,507,990,000),
convertible into 308,219,178 new H Shares issuable by the Company

commencing from 2003. The CB are

as follows:

Tranche I of the CB (“Tranche 1”)

The total subscription amount of Tranche | was HK$280,800,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB297,999,000) which was issued
to A-B Company in April 2003. Tranche | was converted into
60,000,000 new H shares issued by the Company at HK$4.68
(equivalent to approximately RMB4.96) per share on 2nd July, 2003.

Tranche | was interest-free.

Tranche Il of the CB (“Tranche 11”)

The total subscription amount of Tranche 1l was HK$627,120,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB668,322,000) which was issued
to A-B Company in April 2003 concurrently with the issuance of
Tranche I. Tranche Il can be converted into 134,000,000 new H
shares at HK$4.68 (equivalent to approximately RMB4.96) per share
within seven years after issuance. The CB will be automatically
converted at the end of the seven-year conversion period (“Expiry
Date”) if A-B Company does not trigger the conversion. Tranche I
is interest-bearing at 2% per annum. A-B Company will refund all
the interest received as well as all related deductions or withholdings
associated with the interest payments made by the Company upon

conversion.

As at the date of approval of the accounts, A-B Company had not

exercised its conversion right.
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F-BRUBRATES

F=HHEFNRBEESFEAR508,275,000
AT (& K AR®541,669,0007T) © ER
—EE-F+AR-_TSENEZRAoH%
7T ABREAIRXNEMRBEEERN7F
W AAER4458 T (TENARKE4.72
7C) BIREA A AR 114,219,178 #3EH
I o BERZ7EHRADARE RN R E
MBI EEBER - £ HAIERA A
BEMNFERNER2%  BA-BRARBESER
HREEARDAXNOFNENRIEENTE
e

BE-_ZT=F+-A=+—0 &L
B RA-BA 8 317017 £7254,137,0007% 7T
(& #H AR270,835,0007T) 5 =215 5
—HiE%  BA-B ARIKRBITELERE
HMBRE=BHEFERZZTNEF=RA=
T—HE{TTABRA -

RE—HH FZHORE=IFNAIER
RAEFNERE  EETEEEEER
B(TBRER]) RARBNFRLIE K
Al K 4740.0% FPEE4137.7% * 33.5%K%
30.6% ' MA-BARIR AR B FRLAIE
&9 Bl AL4.5% LA ZE9.9% * 20.0%K
27.0% ° A1 - REZBHABRAFAES
HERRE - ABARIMFAMBARAZEE
BIOIROE7%ER - BIERBEE R
FIEHRE - ABRAIR A ZAZLRMD K
MEEMNR -BERBAIRZERNDITE
EXRAE Al BERTEBXEAR
AR B HIA-BREE R R R K & 3 H-IR 58 Bl AR
RREGL1TEZEROBEMHKRERE -

Tranche 111 of the CB (“Tranche 111”)

The total subscription amount of Tranche Il is HK$508,275,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB541,669,000) issuable to A-B
Company by several instalments in October 2003 and in March
2004. Tranche Il will be converted into 114,219,178 new H shares
at HK$4.45 (equivalent to approximately RMB4.72) per share within
seven years after the payment of the subscriptions. The CB will be
automatically converted at the end of the Expiry Date if A-B
Company does not trigger the conversion before the Expiry Date.
Tranche [ll is interest-bearing at 2% per annum. A-B Company will
refund all the interest received as well as all related deductions or
withholdings associated with the interest payments made by the

Company upon conversion.

As at 31st December, 2003, approximately HK$254,137,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB270,835,000) of Portion 1 of
Tranche Il had been issued to A-B Company but A-B Company had
not exercised its conversion rights. The remaining portion of Tranche
[l of CB was issued to A-B Company on 31st March, 2004.

Upon the conversion of each of Tranche I, Tranche Il and Tranche
[l of the CB, the percentage shareholding of Qingdao State-Owned
Assets Administration Bureau (“Qingdao Bureau”), the existing
substantial shareholder of the Company, has decreased/will decrease
from approximately 40.0% to approximately 37.7%, 33.5% and
30.6%, respectively, whereas the holding of A-B Company in the
Company has increased/will increase from approximately 4.5% to
9.9%, 20.0% and 27.0%, respectively. The additional 7% of the
shareholding held by A-B Company after the conversion of Tranche
Il will be subject to a voting trust arrangement in favour of Qingdao
Bureau whereby A-B Company will enjoy the economic benefits
associated with the shares but Qingdao Bureau can exercise the
respective voting rights at its sole discretion. Accordingly, Qingdao
Bureau, through its trustee, will be entitled to exercise the voting
rights attached to such shareholding at general meetings of holders
of state shares and PRC legal person shares and PRC public shares

(H shares) class meetings of the Company.
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RZZEZ=FFT-A=T—BrAKRELKR Details of the CB not yet converted as at 31st December, 2003 are
BOHRAERRBESBRFEINET as follows:
HERE (AR®) BTAY mEtERAE
Face value (RMB) Date of issuance Mandatory conversion date
— & 668,321,784 —TT=FWmMA—H —E-ZEF=RA=+—H
Tranche Il 1st April, 2003 31st March, 2010
FoHOE— 270,834,516 “EEF=FtA-t-B —F-F£+A=-1H
Tranche 11l Part 1 21st October, 2003 20th October, 2010
2
Total 939,156,300

BNME (ARE)

Interest expenses accruals (RMB)

FOH AEFRRMNE EEFEFFE FRE
Beginning of year Interests accrued Payment End of year
— 11,187,740 (6,673,860) 4,513,880

23. % &

BE-_ZTT=F-AZ+=HBBLKRE
BRIRE  ARABEEREABARE
1,000,000,000T ¥ M & A R %
1,308,219,1787L * M E M B 7 &
308,219,178k BREEARKE 1T ZHE °

ZZDMTEHzFfr;‘LL TRZIETE=F+AH=H -

REIAER468B T (MENARE
496m)éﬁ§}ﬁ{ﬂ K E—EH AT ER AR
f& 8 AR AN 12 7]60,000,0008% 7 2 1T HAR
Bin o RN © SARDAIHBRBRABAAR
#346,850,0007T 3 = A K % 406,850,000
T AR NTSERANAARKE
1,000,000,0007C & M ZE A R ¥
1,060,000,0007C °

23.SHARE CAPITAL

By a special resolution passed of the EGM on 23rd January, 2003,
the authorised registered ordinary share capital was increased from
RMB1,000,000,000 to RMB1,308,219,178 by the creation of
308,219,178 new H shares of RMB1 each.

As mentioned in note 22, A-B Company converted Tranche | of the
CB into 60,000,000 new H shares issued by the Company at
HK$4.68 (equivalent to approximately RMB4.96) on 2nd July, 2003.
This conversion increased the overseas public H Shares from
RMB346,850,000 to RMB406,850,000 and the total issued share
capital from RMB1,000,000,000 to RMB1,060,000,000.
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A summary of the share capital is set out below:

—22=f+=-A=+—H
31st December, 2003

—EE_F+_A=t—H
31st December, 2002

AR% Bt AR% Biokt
RMB Percentage RMB Percentage
FEETRAER: Unlisted:
B R ik State shares 399,820,000 37.72% 399,820,000 39.98%
RE AR PRC legal person shares 53,330,000 5.03% 53,330,000 5.33%
ErmE: Listed:
AN PRC public shares 200,000,000 18.87 % 200,000,000 20.00%
(ARR) (“A Shares”)
BINA B Overseas public shares 406,850,000 38.38% 346,850,000 34.69%
(HA) (“H Shares”)
= Total 1,060,000,000 100.00% 1,000,000,000 100.00%
248K A& 24. CAPITAL RESERVE
(@ &8 (a) Group
FAOE AEHEM KERHD FREY
Beginning Increase Decrease  Ending balance
balance
ARE ARE AR B ARE
RMB RMB RMB RMB
% 25 1 (i) Share premium (i) 1,549,707,662 221,432,244 — 1,771,139,906
BE Surplus on revaluation 6,304,398 — — 6,304,398
EEERE of fixed assets
BXBEEAEEE  Donations received 4,238,603 633,205 — 4,871,808
ERF AR ER Forfeited payable balances 10,903,866 839,783 = 11,743,649
I Z KRR of subsidiaries
HAh Others 4,817,221 — = 4,817,221
A& Total 1,575,971,750 222,905,232 — 1,798,876,982

4
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(b) & F (b) Company
FOE ARF KEFD EXRY
Beginning Increase Decrease  Ending balance
balance
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR AR AR
BRAEE (i) Share premium (i) 1,549,707,662 221,432,244 — 1,771,139,906
BENGEE Surplus on revaluation 56,043,498 == — 56,043,498
A of fixed assets
BESIBMEEXEME  Donations received 4,238,603 633,205 = 4,871,808
R 7 AR #E%  Forfeited payable balances 10,903,866 839,783 — 11,743,649
St 2 Rk of subsidiaries
HAh Others 4,817,221 — = 4,817,221
= Total 1,625,710,850 222,905,232 —  1,848,616,082

(i) REZNEBRANA-BARIRARFERTT
EE - HAEHRABBESFNRRE -

during the year.

(i) The increase in current year was mainly due to the exercise of

conversion rights of Tranche | Convertible Bonds by A-B Company

25. BB 0E 25. RESERVES
@ &8 (a) Group

£ AER M rERD ERE
Beginning Current year Current year Ending
balance appropriation reduction balance
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR ARK ARK AR
EEBRBRAES Surplus reserve 162,654,576 55,530,809 — 218,185,385
Nk Public welfare fund 129,569,582 47,409,090 — 176,978,672
CEi Total 292,224,158 102,939,899 — 395,164,057
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(b) 7] (b) Company
FOH AEHM KERD FERE
Beginning Current year Current year Ending
balance appropriation reduction balance
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR AR AR
EEBRBRAES Surplus reserve 126,752,841 24,528,060 = 151,280,901
FEEATmE Public welfare fund 97,483,620 24,528,060 — 122,011,680
A& Total 224,236,461 49,056,120 = 273,292,581

BREBE(REARKENBEARDE) - ARAE
BREEGHRE  ARARFEEFHNE
MI0%REIVEERBRAES F EETRH
NiEe 2 BEINRARH50%A LR - 7]
THRR - Z2TERHRABECHBIPIIM
HERTTARBRER  SKEEMRAX - B
TRRBREEEN  ETRHBLOBEENE
MRARE  ERBEAFGLORRAEE25% o
ARAIZZEZT=ZFRINEBARS
245,280,600 IREVEE BA LN TEE AR

24,528,0607T (ZEZT ZF : 22,325,410
L) °

BHONEFEEFHEMI0%RIVEE A
& AREIMNSEEMNTAARKRES
B EREAR  REAELARSEALE
RHBAB HIHEBENBERERERD
AMEELERZE - ARATT=F

HFEREARBE245,280,600TIREVEE A
HE AE®24,528,0600T (ZEE =4 :
22,325,4107T) °

In accordance with the provisions of the Company Laws in the
PRC, the articles of association of the Company and board resolution
passed by the Company, the Company appropriates 10% of its annual
profits to a statutory surplus reserve, until the reserve reaches 50%
of the issued capital of the Company. With the approval obtained
from the relevant government authorities, the surplus reserve can
be utilized to offset any deficit or to increase the share capital of
the Company, provided that the remaining balance of the reserve,
after such utilizations, does not fall below 25% of the issued capital
balance. During 2003, the Company appropriated RMB24,528,060
(2002: RMB22,325,410) to the statutory surplus reserve balance out
of its net profits of RMB245,280,600.

In addition, the Company also appropriates its profits of 10%, after
offsetting any accumulated deficits, to a public welfare fund. The
fund is designated for the use of staff welfare and it is not
distributable as dividends. Upon consumption of the fund, an
equivalent amount has to be transferred from the fund to a
discretionary surplus reserve. The utilisation is either recorded as
assets or expenses of the Company. During the year, the Company
appropriated RMB24,528,060 (2002: RMB22,325,410) out of its net
profits of RMB245,280,600.
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26.K 72 B F 78

26. UNAPPROPRIATED PROFITS

3 AT
Group Company
31st December, 31st December, 31st December, 31st December,
2003 2002 2003 2002
ARH¥ AR B AR ARK
RMB RMB RMB RMB
(it £ 40) (ffit40)
(Note 40) (Note 40)
F 1K 5 B F) Unappropriated profits, 108,828,477 179,964,360 163,428,623 204,825,341
as previously reported
BWAE — Net income impact of 220,000,000 110,000,000 220,000,000 110,000,000
BEARBKRAR prior year adjustments
BERERAZHEDIK  (Note 2)
3R & B A
(ffzt2)
BRAERER Unappropriated profits 328,828,477 289,964,360 383,428,623 314,825,341
FNRDENE brought forward, after
retrospective prior
year adjustments
[N = D Add: Net profit for 253,871,661 230,657,385 245,280,600 223,254,102
the year
i IRIVEATE AR Less: Profit appropriation  (55,530,809) (42,804,520) (24,528,060) (22,325,410)
NEE to surplus reserve
(Ktit25) (Note 25)
A RBUETE Less: profit appropriation  (47,409,090) (38,988,748) (24,528,060) (22,325,410)
NamE to public welfare
(Ktit25) fund (Note 25)
i B EBIRAEF] Less: Dividends (220,000,000)  (110,000,000)  (220,000,000)  (110,000,000)
FRRABEANE Unappropriated profits 259,760,239 328,828,477 359,653,103 383,428,623

carried forward

M2 -

ZKEIE_? 7—£ﬁtﬂ_

RREEABITN(EESHERN — BEA
BERARER) - AEBRFRBENSBE
MBS B 7R MR R R = I
REEE AEAZENMEEDS K
REFETUEPRABRLDRAE T -F
Z_R_TT—F+_A=Z+—BHEXD
i 78 A R # 220,000,000t & A R #&
110,000,0007T °

As detailed in Note 2, according to the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises “Event After the Balance Sheet Date (2003
revised)” — Cailuai [2003]. No.12 issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC, dividends which are proposed or declared should be
recognised as a liability of an enterprise in the period in which the
declaration is made. As a result, unappropriated profits as at 31st
December, 2002 and 2001 were adjusted retrospectively and they
were increased by RMB220,000,000 and RMB110,000,000

respectively.
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Ak BRE_STNFNA-—REZER
BRAZ  —STE=-FEREEBETRN
1,060,000,0000 T & - AR E+KRM 2
ERRERZERSKRA 2T - KA
212,000,0007C © il iZ & W AFRR A8
o REHBMEPTIZAE R Lt B
Flo —RBREAEBBZAR  RIHE
BREE_ZSTNFENGHWMKRF o

27.FERBRAR KA

@@ BEXEDWIIR

ARAEERARRCEERBREER
HERE MEMEBRABREREE
ZEAEBWANBD ZTURE  BEEAR
SEYRBEREREEXHZABIN -

In addition, according to a resolution of the board passed on 1st
April, 2004, the directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
for 2003 of RMB2 per ten shares, totaling RMB212,000,000, based
on 1,060,000,000 issued shares of the Company as at the approval
date of financial statements. Proposed final dividend is awaiting for
the approval of the shareholders at forthcoming annual general
meeting and have not been reflected in the financial statements of
2003. Upon these proposed dividends are approved at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the dividends distribution will

be reflected in the financial statements of 2004.

27.TURNOVER AND COST OF SALES

(@) Business segment

The sole principal activity of the Group and the Company is the
production and distribution of beer products and the profit generated
from other operations attribute to less than 10% of the consolidated
net profit of the Group. Accordingly, no analysis of business segment

information is provided.
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(b) BB E S I R (b) Geographical segment

2003 2002
ARH AR
RMB RMB
FTEEBKA Turnover
BEEME Qingdao region 2,161,925,614 1,946,814,810
Bt 1L 3R 3t [ Other Shandong region 1,105,257,726 986,660,305
FE4b i = Hua Bei China region 1,726,558,958 1,459,874,656
FEEE Hua Nan China region 2,656,251,259 2,511,429,345
HAHE Overseas 379,664,451 332,299,105
INET Sub-total 8,029,658,008 7,237,078,221
& 3 [ 5 26 Rl 48 B 4K 6 Intra-segment elimination (521,698,950) (300,344,095)
Total 7,507,959,058 6,936,734,126
TREREBRAE Cost of sales
EBME Qingdao region 1,183,539,133 1,061,090,151
HoAth 1L 3Rt [ Other Shandong region 756,629,283 668,377,784
b @ Hua Bei China region 1,125,265,879 933,119,317
E@E Hua Nan China region 1,545,166,980 1,495,854,483
HAHE Overseas 237,176,794 199,900,413
Nat Sub-total 4,847,778,069 4,358,342,148
EHE S EPEME G HHE Inter-segment elimination (521,698,950) (300,344,095)
At Total 4,326,079,119 4,057,998,053

ARARBZELEXRHERARETEEHK
AOTBREEEHREL KA ERIEE
2 EBSIR ©

BE-_TT=F+-A=+—8 Kx&£E
RARRMAAEEFPHEREIANR
A R % 588,207,000t X A R ¥
528,880,0007T * D AlAMEAEE RALQA]
EHHEBANT8%K21.1%(ZTT =
F : AR ® 583,446,000t & A R ¥
552,120,0007C * D RlAMEAEE R AR A
2EHE WA B8.4%K24.7%) o

to markets within the Tsingtao region.

No geographical analysis of the Company is provided as most of

the sales and cost of sales incurred by the Company were attributable

For the year ended 31st December, 2003, sales made to the five
largest customers of the Group and the Company amounted to
approximately RMB588,207,000 and RMB528,880,000, respectively,
being 7.8% and 21.1% of the turnover of the Group and the
Company (2002: RMB583,446,000 and RMB552,120,000, being
8.4% and 24.7%, respectively).
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28.EEEBKH SR MM 28.SALES TAXES AND SURCHARGES
ER HEE 58 A F
Types Basis of Group Company
accrual 2003 2002 2003 2002
AR AR% AR% AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
HER Consumption tax 5. ff#3 694,287,000 622,101,766 104,060,230 102,513,327
Refer to Note 3
WM EESRT  City construction R 773 68,526,032 65,351,767 18,538,106 18,703,975
tax Refer to Note 3
Hfth Others 31,361,135 28,007,900 7,869,804 8,392,259
&5 Total 794,174,167 715,461,433 130,468,140 129,609,561
29. HAih =R H 29. PROFIT FROM OTHER OPERATIONS
58 A F
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
AR#¥ AR ARK ARK
RMB RMB RMB RMB
HiEBUA Income from other operations
MEHE Sales of materials 6,575,109 3,799,941 256,899,919 71,669,620
ERHE Sales of scraps 15,708,096 14,942,696 1,328,124 1,388,865
HAl Others 34,551,098 32,923,108 10,958,702 7,062,886
g Sub-total 56,834,303 51,665,745 269,186,745 80,121,371
H fth 5 B Cost of other operations
MR E & Sales of materials 12,638,591 8,455,781 260,373,118 74,654,160
RE KL 3H & Sales of scraps 4,871,690 3,329,892 1,317,144 1,405,832
Hith Others 21,915,717 24,627,791 1,222,644 2,353,592
AN Sub-total 39,425,998 36,413,464 262,912,906 78,413,584
H i 25 75 7)) Profit from other operations 17,408,305 15,252,281 6,273,839 1,707,787
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30.MBERFE 30. FINANCE EXPENSES, NET
58 A
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
AR# AR AR% AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
FEXH Interest expense (112,987,408)  (146,661,261) (35,300,664) (59,585,247)
2 A Interest income = i - 2,384,058
— ERFAE — subsidiaries
FE WA Interest income 13,567,047 10,661,089 = 951,201
— Hfth — others
fE 5 8% 0% Exchange differences, net  (9,230,286) (7,060,976) (5,059,801) (1,939,082)
HAh Others 2,846,619 4,999,477 (3,234,882) (875,431)
At Total (105,804,028  (138,061,671) (43,595,347) (59,064,501)

AEERKREFETUERCEOFEZHEAL The capitalised borrowing costs for the Group amounted to
ABAR®1,815000C (ZZZ=F : AR  approximately RMB1,815,000 in the current year (2002 : RMB818,000)

#818,0007T) (ffiF14) o (Note 14).
31. REW#= 31.INVESTMENT INCOME
58 YN
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
AR¥ AR¥ ARK ARK
RMB RMB RMB RMB
BRI E W Income from debt 1,135,489 1,967,305 1,135,489 1,967,305
investments
() AN Equity share in (losses) (7,250,733) (5,059,438) 130,336 (188,789)
AE (B1]) BT profits of associated
companies
DIEERF R A Equity share in profits = — 4,229,661 (12,551,070)
RERF (BE) of subsidiaries
R EZFEE  Amortisation of 23,134,381 25,203,313 16,363,211 18,345,285
investment differences
HAh Others (3,117,041) (322,841) 2,910,248 620,378
G Total 13,902,096 21,788,339 24,768,945 8,193,109

ARBIREZERFARMZEWGEERN  There are no significant restrictions on the repatriation of investment
THEEERRH - income of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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32.7 RE A 32.SUBSIDY INCOME

AEEREAFEETHNELIWEEEE ST -+ During the acquisitions of certain subsidiaries of the Group in prior
BE B BRATEK - B MERT  years, the Group entered into various agreements with the relevant
NEHRER— Ekﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂl BHEE  municipal governments. Under the terms of these agreements, these
R-BELEZBFIZREFEUERTFLBMM  subsidiaries can enjoy certain financial incentives granted by the
& IR %Fv%ﬁ’%ﬁ'\]ﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬂ&]\ o relevant municipal governments, including financial subsidies

determined based on the amounts of various taxes paid by the

subsidiaries.

BREARBEZTEOOMN - B HEEM
BHAESERFARNERRTHRERS
AREVRBUES

The Company’s board of directors are not aware of any reasons that
the said financial subsidies will not be available to the subsidiaries
in the future.

3LEENRAESTH 33.NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

£E A
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
ARH AR#K ARH AR
RMB RMB RMB RMB
2RI Non-operating income
REBTEE Gain on disposal of 6,006,098 2,303,325 572,765 135,727
U B fixed assets
Hit Others 9,584,610 4,757,747 561,367 211,956
CEl Total 15,590,708 7,061,072 1,134,132 347,683
LEINZ Non-operating expenses
BEEE Loss on disposal of 18,651,377 16,934,548 4,911,872 4,673,829
BEFHERXR fixed assets
AREEEE Provision for impairment 46,302,576 40,342,227 3,943,557 8,000,000
B 2 of fixed assets
HAth Others 10,734,465 16,107,313 3,153,379 1,312,171
At Total 75,688,418 73,384,088 12,008,808 13,986,000
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BVEABLEERS

FEEHBARNERARIZRAERTA
ARBERR  MAEBZTARANERD
AP AR E K4 o

M ERHBEEER S ERNER AR
METEREREENEERNT

34.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties with control relationship mainly represent subsidiaries
and associated companies. Particulars of those entities are detailed
in Note 4.

The name and relationship with the Group of the related parties

with no control relationship but with transactions or balances

outstanding are as follows:

AREH

Name of company

REAKENEE
Relationship with the Group

EERBEEEARAA
Tsingtao Brewery Group Co., Ltd.

EERBEEXARAA
Tsingtao Brewery Shi Ye Co., Ltd.

FEREEMERARAR
Tsingtao Brewery Real Estate Co., Ltd.

EEREIRARAR
Tsingtao Brewery Engineering Co., Ltd.

EEREHESEERRAR
Tsingtao Brewery Advertising Co., Ltd.

EERBENELEBRAA
Tsingtao Brewery Trading Co., Ltd.

EERBENEEEBRAA
Tsingtao Brewery Property Management Co., Ltd.

BEEEECEM) R QA
Tsingtao Brewery (Zhangzhou) Company Limited

75 %2 % Hi R X KL 48 R

Xian Hans Beverages Company Limited

AAFHABRERA G4

Asahi Breweries Limited

AAFROEERAEH

Itochu Corporation

AAEESMERASH

Sumikin Bussan Corporation

HOEREEREREIERR

Certain common directors and a common major shareholder

HOEREEREREIERR

Certain common directors and a common major shareholder

HOEREEREREIERR

Certain common directors and a common major shareholder

HOEREEREREIERR

Certain common directors and a common major shareholder

HOEREERERETERR

Certain common directors and a common major shareholder

HOEREEREREIERR

Certain common directors and a common major shareholder

HOEREEREREIERR

Certain common directors and a common major shareholder

HOEREEREREIERR

Certain common directors and a common major shareholders

LSNPS ¥

Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

ERFRARLERR

Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

ERFRARLERR
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

ERFARLERR
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
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AREE

Name of company

EARENEE
Relationship with the Group

IERTGEEEEELERF
Jiangsu Pexian State Owned Operations Centre

WRHASEFEBEERAF
Shandong Weifang Lanzai Brewery Company Limited

AL TRER DA
Sichuan Huo Ju Hua Gong Company Limited

LTREARAE=BRHNERAA
Beijing Asia Shuang He Sheng Five Star
Three Ring Beer Company Limited

TREARREREEE LT
Beijing Asia Shuang He Sheng Five Star
Beer Group Company

KEMAFIEREEEE QA

Zhuhai Doumen Huang Mei Enterprise Group Company
BEBRBER

Fuzhou Brewery

EIHEEIMLATRLA
Carlsberg Asia Private Company Limited

FERUMETIREEELERRLA
Loaoling Anshan Municipal Light State
Owned Assets Operating Co. Ltd

A-B 7]
A-B Company

EEWE(BM) GEHEERAF

Tsingtao Brewery (Guangzhou) General Agency Co. Ltd.

IREEWBHEEFREMELA
Beijing Tsingtao Brewery General Agency Co. Ltd.

BB (HBM) ARAF
Tsingtao Brewery (Yangzhou) Company Limited

ERNEEERALEERAR
Liaoling Shenqing Tsingtao Brewery Sales
Company Limited

EERE (M) ARAF

Tsingtao Brewery (Nanning) Company Limited

EERBHAEAIMERDA

Tsingtao Beer and Asahi Beverage Company Limited

ERFRARLERR
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

ERFARLBERR
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
ERF R B D EBRER
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

218 F 07 S BIRE
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

EIRF QB D BBR
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

IR+ R A D BRI
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
2 S RNCIS (d
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

218 F 07 S BRE
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

ERFARIHEBER

Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

TEREE

Major investor

NG

Associated company

A N

Associated company

AN
Associated company
NG
Associated company

RN

Associated company
I
Associated company
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FRA-BRRISN » A EBB XN AF NG E
BERDAEFBRD -

any equity interests in the Company during the year.

Except for A-B Company, none of the above related companies own

(a) For the year ended 31st December, 2003, the Group had the

/\F&aﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁ'ﬂigx_‘%iﬁ@? following material transactions with related and associated
companies:
2003 2002
ARH A R &
RMB RMB
HEEY : Included in turnover:
BFERE BN ERAA Tsingtao Brewery (Yangzhou) Company Limited 47,768 —
REEY Included in cost of sales:
SERAMELEERAA Tsingtao Brewery Trading Co., Ltd. 34,150,167 20,777,289
WRAEGEFEERR AR Shandong Weifang Lanzai Brewery 320,082 467,125
Company Limited
EERBEBXARAA Tsingdao Brewery Shi Ye Co., Ltd. 29,049,278 6,954,577
EERBEIRAERAA Tsingdao Brewery Engineering Co., Ltd 187,292 —
BEEWRBCEM) BRAA Tsingdao Brewery (Zhangzhou) Company Limited 38,993,087 —
At Total 102,699,906 28,198,991
BHMERRASERMH Advertising services provided by a related company:
B&ERY
EERBEEEEERRA Tsingtao Brewery Advertising Co., Ltd. - 36,077,725
BB ECERAEBERERE Equipment installation services provided
REIRRY : by a related company:
EEREIRARAA Tsingtao Brewery Engineering Co., Ltd. 70,000 —
BB EXRAREER Guarantees provided by related companies
RERMELR for the Group’s bank loans:
HA B AR 2L Asahi Breweries Limited, ltochu Corporation, = 125,000,000
BARFPEEEERAEH ©  Sumikin Bussan Corporation
AREemERAEGH
EEREEEERAA Tsingtao Brewery Group Co., Ltd. 4,617,237 875,005,661
At Total 4,617,237 1,000,005,661

AREHEETRE S MERRICHEE T X
BZEMUTSERERTERER

by the Group are determined based on market price.

The pricing of all the sales or purchases made to/from related parties
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SEERREEERARARNRAI—EE
FRES®E(EMN) BRHEFR DA KA
RERKERENRFERBRTAARS
105,000,000 &R - RZTE=F =
A=+—RH ZERZKREELHE(NKRE
BEE) B AR 68,108,000 © #ER
FiaE7 o

b) HE-TT=F+_A=1—-HAKH

Tsingtao Brewery Group Co., Ltd., has provided a guarantee for an

accounts receivable repayment plan of RMB105,000,000 due from

a customer and Tsingtao Brewery (Guangzhou) General Agency Co.
Ltd. As at 31st December, 2003, approximately RMB68,108,000 of

the balance (deducting the related provisions) was still outstanding,

please refer to Note 7.

(b) As at 31st December, 2003, the Group had the following

HEMERNERRFRABMOT significant current balances with related and associated companies:
£8 AH
Group Company
KER
EEHE
Maximum
balance
2003 2002 for the year 2003 2002
ARH AR# ARY ARH AR#
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
A% B IR & Included in short-term
(ZFXER) R investment (entrusted
E1T (HEa) loans) (Note (i)
BEBEE (HM) Tsingtao Brewery (Yangzhou) 66,450,000 76,490,000 76,490,000 66,450,000 76,490,000
AR QT Company Limited
BEREUWERZ R Included in accounts receivable
REIEWARZ A+ and long-term accounts
receivable:
BEWAE (BM) Tsingtao Brewery 92,560,810 92,560,810 86,860,810 92,560,810
BEEBRAA (Guangzhou) General
(£ (@) Agency Co., Ltd.
(Note (a))
ItREEWEIEE  Beijing Tsingtao Brewery 11,245,784 11,245,784 11,245,784 11,245,784
BEREERF General Agency Co., Ltd.
EERBEX Tsingtao Brewery 156,652 1,553,781 1,553,781 156,652
ARADA Shi Ye Co., Ltd.
BEBE CEM) Tsingtao Brewery 156,000 156,000 156,000 156,000
BR QA (Zhangzhou) Co., Ltd.
BEWE (HM) Tsingtao Brewery 1,086,850 1,086,850 1,086,850 1,086,850
AR QA (Yangzhou) Company
Limited
CEl Total 105,206,096 106,603,225 100,903,225 105,206,096

4
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£8 NG
Group Company
KER
BEHE
Maximum
balance
2003 2002  for the year 2003 2002
AR ARK AR AR AE#
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
BEREMEURZRA : Included in other receivables:
BIXREARAT  Ou Mei Investment 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Company Limited.
FEBRUMETIEE Liaoling Anshan Municipal 877,186 — 877,186 = —
BELEERARA  Light Assets Operating
State Owned Co., Ltd.
M)l KB Ak TR Sichuan Huo Ju Hua Gong 2,204,706 — 2,204,706 = =
BRAT Company Limited.
BEEEBMEER Tsingtao Brewery Property — 620,736 620,736 — 620,736
BERAR Management Co., Ltd.
EEEBEE Tsingtao Brewery 208,373 19,061,291 19,061,291 208,373 19,061,291
BRAAE Shi Ye Co., Ltd.
g gz -] Xian Hans Beverages Co., Ltd. 126,479 55,167 126,479 — —
LB TR
EEEE (FM) Tsingtao Brewery = 6,544 6,544 = 6,544
BRAF (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd.
EEEBELERE  Tsingtao Brewery 3,037,775 — 3,037,775 10,775 =
ARAF Advertising Co., Ltd.
EEREEE Tsingtao Brewery Group 2,936,756 — 5,321,661 240,146 —
ARRA Company Limited
EEWELR Tsingtao Brewery 248,154 1,538,070 1,859,473 248,154 1,538,070
ARRA Engineering Co., Ltd.
BEEMBYMELE  Tsingtao Brewery 2,938,525 2,938,525 2,938,525 2,938,525 2,938,525
BERAF Trading Co., Ltd.
BB (M%)  Fuzhou Niang Brewery 5,679 — 5,679 — =
MABRAA (Singapore) Co., Ltd.
HFEEE(EM) Tsingtao Brewery (Zhangzhou) 15,524,000 11,500,000 15,524,000 11,500,000 11,500,000
ARRA Company Limited
RgmAPI2 K Zhuhai Doumen Huang Mei 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 — —
CREELQA Enterprise Group Company
EEBEE M E Tsingtao Brewery Real 10,000,000 5,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 5,000,000
BRAE Estate Co., Ltd
CE Total 45,107,633 47,720,333 68,584,055 27,145,973 42,665,166
BERBMERA ©  Included in prepayments:
EEWETIR Tsingtao Brewery 1,189,240 — 1,189,240 = —
ARAF Engineering Co., Ltd.
BIERER Included in advances from
RRA customers:
EEREEE Liaoling Shenging Tsingtao 3,073,220 - 3,073,220 -
e G A 8 Brewery Sales Company

BRRA

Limited
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&8 NG
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
ARH AR# ARH AR#
RMB RMB RMB RMB
BEREMEMNZKRE Included in other payables
REEMRRA and long-term payables
EEBBETE Tsingtao Brewery 52,608 967,023 =5 -

ARRA Engineering Co., Ltd.

%ﬂéﬁ)@‘i ] Tsingtao Brewery 25,099,396 2,580,320 — 2,580,320

AR Group Co., Ltd.

%I@@%ﬂﬂfg Tsingtao Brewery — 8,930 = 8,930

R Real Estate Co., Ltd.

L&D %I*ﬁ‘é}é Jiangsu Peixian State 441,187 1,028,000 — —

AN Owned Operations

Centre
ItRESEAE  Beijing Asia Shuang He 50,944,166 26,472,083 — =
=RERM Sheng Five Star Three

ARAF Ring Beer Co., Ltd.

BEEEHA Tsingtao Beer and Asahi 136,618 = 136,618 -

RmBRAT Beverage Company

Limited
EEWEEX Tsingtao Brewery 8,000 — 8,000 —
ARRA Shi Ye Co. Ltd
EEWBME Tsingtao Brewery Property 3,700 = 3,700 =

EEARAA Management Co., Ltd.

ETHEMILA  Carlsberg Asia Private 11,822 = 11,822 =

BRAR Co. Ltd

Il kE{LTH  Sichuan Huo Ju Hua 3,393 — — -

ARRA Gong Co. Ltd.

/NG A-B Company 124,047,480 — — —
Bt Total 200,748,370 31,056,356 160,140 2,589,250
BEREMEZRA ©  Included in accounts payable:

BEEBEYELE  Tsingtao Brewery Trading 2,136,104 591,650 2,136,104 591,650
BR A Co., Ltd.

BEEEEE Tsingtao Brewery Shi Ye 528,410 89,686 450,582 40,686
BRAR Co. Ltd.

PR TR Sichuan Huo Ju Hua 370,730 282,904 — —
ARRA Gong Co. Ltd.

BEEETR Tsingtao Brewery 280,892 271,265 = =
ARRA Engineering Co., Ltd.

BEEBEELEE  Tsingtao Brewery 26,664 — 26,664 —
BRAF Advertising Co., Ltd

WERMHEFEE  Shangdong Weifang Lanzai 82,788 = — -
AR AT Brewery Company Limited

ITRESRNE Beijing Asia Shuang He 13,966,225 — — —
LA SE YN Sheng Five Star Beer

Group Co.

EEREHA Tsingtao Beer and Asahi 12,672 — — —

R m AR A A Beverage Company Limited
A%t Total 17,404,485 1,235,505 2,613,350 632,336
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BRI ()BT M FE fR - A SR B R AR R BIFT
FEBOENEREIEERRERTEE
HFH - HAEFE -

)Eﬁﬁ:;ﬁg:E—P A=+—8 " ' &2

BRTERBRITUNZTEFTFARM
Zﬁ/\ﬁmmw 0007 (ZZEZZF : AR
#76,490,0007T) ER T —BZE AR o Lt
ZRERAR—FRNIY 2RI EE
R o

(mm TE=F1+AH FEAABRABA
— M fERHE - BIBZHZE - A-BD
71 XEx& 150000007E(ZW\EM
124047000m)([1 R TEBRA © %
BERNEMNER1% EFF  EFHAR
FoARARACRUZERZEEBIEELER -

_I

(c) ZZDFHEIMe)?ﬁ?Lﬁ CEAEQRRMREEE
FEN-_ZTTNF—ARK HEBEE-ZF
Z=F+ A=+ BHHHABEQRRN
BERBEDNR AEEEBEQAARAKNE
EHEBRZOT ¢

Except for the amount mentioned in (a), the Group’s and the
Company’s current balances with related companies are unsecured,

non-interest bearing and they have no fixed repayment term.

(i) As at 31st December, 2003, the Company had provided
approximately RMB66,450,000 (2002: RMB76,490,000) entrusted
loans to an associated company, respectively, through the Bank of
Communications. All the entrusted loans are interest free, unsecured

and they will mature within one year.

(ii) In October 2003, Hong Kong Company entered into a loan
agreement with A-B Company, pursuant to which, Hong Kong
Company borrowed a loan of US$15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB124,047,000) (the “Loan”) from A-B Company.
The Loan is interest bearing at 1% per annum, unsecured and
repayable within five years. The Company has undertaken to

guarantee the repayment of the Loan.

(c) As detailed in Note 4(e), the equity transfer process of Tsingtao
Brewery (Nanning) Company Limited (“Nanning Company”) was
completed in January 2004. As a result, the company had not been
accounted for as an associate for the year ended 31st December,
2003. The Group had the following material transactions with

Nanning Company in the current year:

2003 2002

AR¥ AR

RMB RMB

BRERELEBWANA Included in Turnover 8,074,221 9,150,067
BRERELEBKANA Included in Cost of sales 257,249,002 231,185,298
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R-ZEBEE=F+_A=1+—H KEEE As of 31st December, 2003, the current balances maintained between
MERAMNERBRERBRELOT : the Group and Nanning Company were as follows:

2003 2002
BRERNERESRA Included in accounts receivables 3,844,839 2,148,310
BEEMERA Included in accounts payables — 4,611,675
BEREMERZRA Included in other receivables 20,515,200 66,201,494
BEREMNERRA Included in prepayment 34,471,657 =

5. EERERMTE

BE_ZT=F+-_A=+-HLEE
AEXNMEMKLEEHEANRESEE  include:
B

35.NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Cash payments for other operating activities during the year mainly

XFEH Types of payment
rEE b YN
Group Company
AR AR
RMB RMB
E&EH Advertising expenses 264,365,518 108,753,544
EWEH Transportation expenses 78,672,637 5,606,062
EEBH Selling expenses 464,449,357 51,479,449
EEEH General and administrative expenses 148,795,597 58,201,239
Hith Others 278,227,955 33,368,518
= Total 1,234,511,064 257,408,812

4
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36.7 T EE

a) REEBERESMBAR - ALNUNF
BRBREREHERENRER  BUET R
BRMNEEMABERE  NEBOEEH
R ABECERNBINERSE
MleR—FT=F+-A=+—H XK
BRARBNARTRZEFEIOHET - M
ARERAARTARABIEMEAEE
BEOREE®CHAENTE - REARME
Rt EFERRARERAREERT
ARREEEAREER AU INENE
AN EERERELEE -

b RZZEZ—F+—f  ARA—HDH
ﬁﬁﬁiADEm%nﬁAE&&iﬁ$
DA AKRR WEAHEEAMA
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) Pursuant to certain policies for housing reform issued by the
State Council and Qingdao Municipal Government in 1998, the
policy of allocating staff quarters as welfare benefits of the employees
was terminated. In replacement, qualified employees are to be
compensated in the form of monetary housing subsidies (“Housing
Reform”). As at 31st December, 2003, no formal plan had yet been
developed by the Group and the Company, and no plans had been
announced by the Group and the Company to their employees in
respect of the arrangement. After seeking legal advice, the Company’s
board of directors are of the opinion that the Group and the
Company had no obligation to make any payment or provision for
such monetary housing subsidies as at 31st December, 2003 and

there is no reasonable basis to accrue for any potential liabilities.

(b) In November 2001, a distributor of the products of the Company
( “the Claimant”) filed a lawsuit with the Shandong Municipal Higher
People’s Court (“the Court”) against the Company. The Claimant
sued the Company for breach of a sales and distribution contract
(“the Contract”) and claimed for damages of approximately
RMB134,870,000. The Company denied the claim and it also filed
a counter claim against the Claimant for delayed settlement of the
outstanding receivable balances arising from sale of goods to the
Claimant. In addition, the Company also demanded for a termination
of the Contract, repayment of the outstanding receivable balance,
as well as return of certain motor vehicles and beer-selling machinery
previously provided to the Claimant by the Company. As of the date
of approval of these accounts by the board of directors, no verdict
had yet been made by the Court. After consultation with the
Company’s legal advisor, the directors are of the opinion that the
proceeding is not expected to lead to any material negative impact

on the operating results of the Group and the Company.
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37.R#HEE 37. COMMITMENTS

RZZFZE=F+-A=+—HB AE£EE As of 31st December, 2003, the Group and the Company had no
ARAU I FEEEEEREZESLHORKR capital commitments which were authorised but not contracted and
PRI RR AR LR 2 ARG - provided for:

AEERARBNEEBBERACDELNE  The Group’s and the Company’s capital and operating lease
AREBHBRABROEATE REEHM  commitments which were contracted but not provided for are as
AT follows:

£ YN
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
ARH AR#K ARHE ARE
RMB RMB RMB RMB
BAREG Capital commitments
—BEIR — Construction projects 33,301,097 94,561,000 13,189,086 28,739,000
—RERKBELE  — Investments and 9,950,000 98,000,000 — 98,000,000
acquisitions
et Sub-total 43,251,097 192,561,000 13,189,086 126,739,000
BE&EEBRAAR Expense commitments 572,578 — 447,550 —
(Advertising plans)
REHEAR Operating lease commitments — 151,000 = 151,000
—FUR payable less than one year
GEl Total 43,823,675 192,712,000 13,636,636 126,890,000

M EE 4D AT > A&
— [BERR]AFARE
B o operating cost of Baoji Company.

B2 #KRF AR As detailed in Note 4(a)(ii), Xian Company, a subsidiary of the
BARBH@EE  Group, committed to take up the responsibility of the related
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b) RZTZEWF=A=+—H8  ARAA
A-BRABIETE=DHMBHTRRES -
RESTEEL254,138,0008 T (& HA
R #270,835,0007T) °
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BRAREHE AAfRBHARRSE
#& AR ¥9,500,0007T © EEEB QAN
fEE A% 5 3\ & 500,0007C @ EEE - B
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FENFZARM -
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B2HERRALDA - RESETKRR -
AR ARNE LB QR KD B A BY

R A)95%FN5%MAERE o B IEREHK - £
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aﬂ&@%&éﬁ%lﬁﬁﬁAa ([BEAR])
wE(REEERZ)  ABELASBIL
& AR #2,000,0007T % 500,0007T i B &
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38.EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(a) According to a board resolution passed in October 2003, the
Company together with Huanan Holding Company, a subsidiary of
the Company, agreed to set up a foreign invested enterprise —
“Tsingdao Brewery (Changsha) Company Limited” in Wunan
Province of the PRC with a registered capital of RMB10,000,000.
Both the Company and Huanan Holding Company invested
RMB7,000,000 and RMB3,000,000 on 14th January, 2004,

respectively.

(b) On 31st March, 2004, the Company issued the remaining portion
of Tranche Il of CB to A-B Company at a consideration of
approximately HK$254,138,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB270,835,000).

(c) In December 2003, the Company entered into an agreement
with TB Group Company, pursuant to which, the Company will
inject cash of RMB9,500,000 into Langfang Company, while TB
Group Company will invest RMB500,000 by converting debts into
equity interests. After their additional capital injection, the registered
capital of Langfang Company will be increased from RMB10,000,000
to RMB20,000,000. The additional capital contribution procedures
were completed in March 2004.

In addition, the Company will transfer all 95% of its shareholdings
in Langfang Company to Xian Company. After the transaction, Xian
Company and TB Group Company hold 95% and 5% of the shareholdings
of Langfang Company respectively. The legal procedures of such equity

interest transfer were still in progress as at year end.

(d) In December 2003, the Company and Hong Kong Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Ou Mei Investment
Group Company Limited (“Ou Mei Company”), pursuant to which,
Hong Kong Company acquired 20% and 5% interests of Xiamen
Company held by the Company and Ou Mei Company at
considerations of RMB2,000,000 and RMB500,000, respectively.
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RZZZWE_R  ARENEBRE S
AR EFIA RIS E A K %60,000,0007T
20,000,0007C © &£ &% - EFTARIGEME
XA AR®10,000000T & M=
90,000,0007T * HF K2R A 75%H
- FEEBRAFA2%RE - Ll
BEEREEEBECESHEAERABN
PIROBLE - BFIDBIREMEZE BF I
BELE IREFSRFRELEME

In February 2004, the Company and Hong Kong Company injected
additional capital of RMB60,000,000 and RMB20,000,000 into
Xiamen Company. After this additional capital injection, the
registered capital of Xiamen Company was increased from
RMB10,000,000 to RMB90,000,000. The Company and Hong Kong
Company then hold 75% and 25% equity interests of Xiamen
Company, respectively. The above equity transfer and additional

capital injection were approved by relevant PRC government

==l

J0HIRFEERBE RN TN

authorities and Xiamen Company was changed to a sino-foreign
joint venture enterprise. The change of business registration is still

in progress.

39.NET PROFIT AFTER EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES

%8 AT
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
ARH AR# ARH AR#
RMB RMB RMB RMB
F A Net profit 253,871,661 230,657,385 245,280,600 223,254,102
MOR) : FEET M Add (less): Extraordinary
B@EE gains and losses
— RERMBKRE  — losses/(gain) on 12,645,279 14,631,223 4,339,107 4,538,102
RE - BEE disposal of
BE &R long-term equity
TR & investments, fixed
BE - Hft assets, construction
RHPEE in progress and other
EEMBRE long-term assets
— BT H B — Subsidy income (62,885,064) (96,812,054) — —
— KWEBHES — Interest income from — — (5,106,803) -
ERE entrusted loans
— ERIIRA — Non-operating income  (9,584,610) (4,757,747) (561,367) (211,956)
(TR (excluding gain on
fe & B F disposal of fixed
& E M) assets)
— EEHH — Non-operating expense 10,734,465 16,107,313 3,153,379 1,312,171
(TR (excluding loss on
e & disposal of fixed
EERBRK) assets)
Nt Subtotal 204,781,731 159,826,120 247,104,916 228,892,419
FREEBERD Tax effect on extraordinary 16,199,677 23,374,317 (273,647) (845,748)
R ER gain and losses
MBFERER Net profit before 220,981,408 183,200,437 246,831,269 228,046,671
B &AFFE extraordinary gains

and losses
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40. LRHF

AEERBREARKMENBAES T
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B)RBNRESEKE - LHBRERSE
ABEKED METLERHEFEHEERT
ABF o fhsh - LB EE S 5 RR B
BEERAEE G MRABES NET
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40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has prepared the accounts in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises “Events After the
Balance Sheet Date” issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC.
The adoption of such changes is regarded as a change in accounting
policies thus resulted in changes in the presentation of certain items
and the comparative financial information has been restated
accordingly. Besides, certain items of the comparative financial
information have also been reclassified and disclosed in accordance

to the disclosure requirements in 2003.



